Neath Port Talbot AGENDA

S==— (astell-nedd Port Talbot

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

BWRDD STRYDLUN A PHEIRIANNEG Y CABINET

DYDD GWENER, 17 IONAWR 2020

YN SYTH AR OL CYFARFOD PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISIAU AC

ADNODDAU'R CABINET

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR — CANOLFAN DDINESIG CASTELL-NEDD PORT

TALBOT

10.

Penodi Cadeirydd

Datganiadau o Gysylltiadau

Cynllun Rheoli Asesau Priffyrdd (Tudalennau 3 - 106)

Rhestr o Gontractwyr Cymeradwy (Tudalennau 107 - 118)
Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion Traffig: Cimla (Tudalennau 119 - 128)

Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion Traffig: Amrywiol - Cwmgwrach
(Tudalennau 129 - 140)

Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion Traffig: Heol y Felin a'r Stryd Fawr,
Cwmgwrach (Tudalennau 141 - 150)

Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion Traffig: Strydoedd Amrywiol Castell-nedd
Port Talbot - Ysgolion (Tudalennau 151 - 170)

Blaenraglen Waith (Tudalennau 171 - 172)
Eitemau brys

Unrhyw eitemau brys (boed yn gyhoeddus neu wedi’u heithrio) yn
Ol disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag Offeryn Statudol 2001 rhif




2290 (fel y'i diwygiwyd).

S.Phillips
Prif Weithredwr

Canolfan Ddinesig
Port Talbot
9 January, 2020

Aelodau’r Bwrdd Strydlun a Pheirianneg y Cabinet:

Y Cynghorwyr E.V.Latham a/ac A.Wingrave



Eitem yr Agenda3

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

N Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Streetscene and Engineering Cabinet Board
17" January 2020

Report of the Head of Streetcare — Mike Roberts

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All Wards
Highway Asset Management Plan
Purpose of the Report:

To update Members with regard to ongoing development of
Highway Asset Management planning and seek endorsement
of a revised plan.

Executive Summary:

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council’s Highway Asset
Management Plan (HAMP) provides an integrated framework for
the delivery of highway maintenance services across the
Authority’s road network and optimises resources for the

management of the highway infrastructure.
Background:

In Neath Port Talbot as in other areas, residents, visitors and the
business community rely on the local highway infrastructure to

Tudalen3



undertake their everyday activities. In line with guidance and
best practice the Council is continuing to improve Highway Asset
Management Planning. The Council’s current Highway Asset
Management Plan was adopted by Members in 2015. The
HAMP identifies the main asset groups of the highways
infrastructure, individual asset inventory and condition data,
along with any gaps where issues need to be reviewed to bring
practices/assets up to required standards.

The aim of adopting an Asset Management strategy is to allow a
planned approach to improve the management of the highway
asset in respect of those components that are maintainable at
public expense and for which the Council, as Highway Authority,
is responsible. The Council’s aim is to ensure the asset is
maintained efficiently to both a safe and serviceable condition in
support of the objectives established in the Neath Port Talbot
Single Integrated Plan, and the asset plan is intended to set out
in practical terms the Council’s strategy for doing so.

In Wales, all authorities have agreed to follow a generic HAMP
format derived from working group commissions instigated by
CSS Wales (formerly County Surveyor’'s Society).

This is the fourth review of the Council’s HAMP since its adoption
and the document has been further developed in line with
nationally agreed criteria.

Financial Impacts:

No direct financial implications.

The Highway Asset Management Plan is a means of identify the
implications of given spending levels and ensuring that available
monies are spent to best effect.

Tudalen4



Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act
2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the
Environment (Wales) Act 2016.

The first stage assessment has indicated that a more in-depth
assessment is not required. A summary is included below. The planis

classified to help ensure funding is invested to best effect and where it
is most needed, thereby maximising community benefit.

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No implications.

Workforce Impacts:

No implications.

Legal Impacts:

No implications.

Risk Management implications:

An asset management approach to Highway infrastructure

provides a framework for informed decision making. This plan sets out
the management arrangements required to ensure the benefits of
investment are optimised and that the highway asset is managed to
meet the expectations of the highway user, within the context of the
Council meeting its statutory duties as the Highway Authority.

Consultation:

Tudalen5



There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.
Recommendations:

It is recommended that the revised Highway Asset Management
Plan is endorsed.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To continue the Council’s progress with taking forward Highway
Asset Management Planning.

Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day
call in period.

Appendices

Appendix A — First Stage Assessment
Appendix B - Revised HAMP document

List of Background Papers
None
Officer Contact:

Name: lan David Carter

Designation: Network and Programme Manager
Email: i.carter@npt.gov.uk

Direct Dial: 01639 686908

Name: Steve Bevan

Designation: Highway Asset Management Officer
Email: s.bevan@npt.gov.uk

Direct Dial: 01639 686592

Tudalen6


mailto:i.carter@npt.gov.uk
mailto:s.bevan@npt.gov.uk

—

Meath Port Talbot
e Castell-nedd Port Talbot

toegigh Cowacil Cpagar Bardeivd Sinal

Highways Asset Management Plan
2019-2022

Directorate of Environment and Regeneration

0
Tudalen7 DRAFT



Executive Summary

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council's Highway Asset
Management Plan (HAMP) provides an integrated framework for the
delivery of highway maintenance services across the Authority’s road
network and optimises resources for the management of the highway
infrastructure. Neath Port Talbot's road network is predominantly
urban and has a total carriageway length of 854km whilst the footway

network totals around 950km.

This document sets out the Council’s objectives, policies and
strategy for managing its highway infrastructure assets. It recognises
the importance of its highway infrastructure in supporting corporate,
national, regional and local objectives and recognises new
legislation, such as the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales)
Regulations 2011. It also recognises the risk based approach, such
as laid down in the latest Code of Practice, and considers the
resource availability and the prioritisation of such to target areas of
greatest benefit and need. National guidance and increasing
financial pressures moves the Authority towards this risk based
approach, which will help ensure funding is invested where it is most

needed and to best effect.

Although the highway network can be given a monetary value it
plays a far more important role in the economic and social
environments and contributes greatly to the well-being of the county
and to Wales as a whole. The network connects villages, towns and

communities and underpins the economy. It enables people to follow

1
Tudalen8 DRAFT



their leisure pursuits and commute to and from work. Many of these
objectives are encompassed within new Well-being objectives within
the Authority’s Corporate Plan and in the aspirations set out in the

Joint Transport Plan for South West Wales.

The production of the Plan has brought together practitioners
responsible for the different asset groups within the Council and
follows the principles established nationally in Wales through the
County Surveyors Society. The purpose of this Highway Asset
Management Plan is to ensure the delivery of highway services in an
intelligence led and customer responsive way. This approach will
ultimately deliver greater value for money and help achieve key
council goals and objectives. Asset management requires a reliable
knowledge of asset components and involves developing and
maintaining comprehensive inventory and condition data. It also
requires an understanding of individual asset group lifecycles and
how long components can be expected to last. This knowledge
provides the basis for predicting the annual level of investment
required to deliver an appropriate level of service in the most cost

effective manner.

An Asset Management approach to highway infrastructure
maintenance provides a framework for informed decision making.
This Plan sets out the management arrangements required to ensure
the benefits of investment are optimised and that the highway asset is
managed to meet the expectations of the highway user, within the
context of the Council meeting its statutory duties as the Highway
Authority.

2
Tudalen9 DRAFT



1 Introduction

1.1 Highway Asset Management Planning

Highway Asset Management Planning is the process that is intended
to ensure that public infrastructure is managed cost effectively and
that available funding is put to best use. To this end, the following
definition of Asset Management, which is contained within the
Framework for Highway Asset Management, has been accepted by

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council:-

“Asset management is a strategic approach that identifies the optimal
allocation of resources for the management, operation, preservation
and enhancement of the highway infrastructure to meet the needs of

current and future users”

“The adoption of asset management has been proven to provide
significant financial benefits” as determined by the review of
accounting, management and finance mechanisms for Local
Authority Transport Infrastructure Assets. This Asset Management
Plan sets out how Neath Port Talbot CBC intends to access the

potential benefits founded on the principles of:-

o Affordable standards: the Plan establishes standards that
can be afforded and communicates them in such a way that the

public know what service to expect.

3
Tudalenl10 DRAFT



e Long term planning: the Plan covers a set time period to
ensure the right balance of short term fixes, preventative

actions and planned replacement of aged assets.

e Appropriate Budget allocation: the Plan identifies data and
analysis concerning our assets to inform decisions about how
best to allocate finite resources. It also identifies gaps in

knowledge and associated actions.

¢ Management of risk: Within the context of long term planning
and the setting of standards and budgets, the plan aims to

gauge and manage the risk associated with decisions made.

This plan needs to be read in conjunction with the Council’s Highway

and Winter Maintenance plans.

1.2 Drivers for Change

In July 2005 the Roads Liaison Group published “Well Maintained
Highways” the Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance
Management. This Code emphasized the need to establish a logical
management system in order to deliver value for money in highway
maintenance. The Code recognised the need for local flexibility
implied by the new focus on the needs of users and the community. It
encouraged Authorities to respond enthusiastically and creatively to
the challenges posed by Best Value, The Wales Programme for

Improvement and sustainability.

4
Tudalenll DRAFT



The objectives of the Code of Practice were:

e To encourage the adoption of asset management planning as a
means of demonstrating value for money in the delivery of
highway maintenance, consistent with the wider principles of

integrated transport, sustainability and Best Value

e To encourage the development, adoption and regular review of
policies on highway maintenance, consistent with the wider

principles of integrated transport, sustainability and best value.

e To encourage a focus on the needs of users and the
community, and their active involvement in the development

and review of policies, priorities and programmes.

e To encourage harmonisation of highway maintenance practice
and standards where these were consistent with users’
expectations, whilst retaining reasonable diversity consistent

with local choice.

e To encourage the adoption of an efficient and consistent
approach in the collection, processing and recording of highway
inventory, condition and status information for the purpose of
both local and national needs assessment, management and

performance monitoring.

e To encourage the adoption and regular review of a risk
management regime in the determination of local technical and
operational standards, the rectification of defects arising from

5
Tudalenl?2 DRAFT



safety inspections, and investment priorities.

e To encourage continuing innovation in the procurement of
highway maintenance services, whilst complying with high

standards of corporate governance.

A revised Code of Practice for Highways “Well Managed Highway
Infrastructure” was published in October 2016. The revised code
requires authorities to apply a “risk-based approach” to the
management of all highway assets. The County Surveyors Society
Wales (CSSW) is co-ordinating the development of a nationally
consistent response to the code across all Welsh local authorities.
Using CSSW's national Highway Asset Management Project,
guidance is being developed to enable authorities to apply a

consistent method of risk assessment.

Neath Port Talbot has established a Highway Maintenance Plan
which describes how NPTCBC aims to:

¢ Maintain safe passage for highway users.
¢ Protect the asset value of the highway.

e Ensure consistent standards of maintenance across the County

Borough relative to road usage.

e Ensure expeditious movement of traffic by complying with the

Traffic Management Act.

6
Tudalenl13 DRAFT



e Establish a “Needs Based” programme for the maintenance of

the network.

e Target resources and maximise the benefit from available

funds.

¢ Facilitate technical and financial monitoring in order to establish
trends in highway condition and to assess achievement against

expenditure.

e Provide a framework for reviewing policies and standards and

for developing strategies.

¢ Implement the principles outlined in the latest Code of Practice.

e Ensure that all highway maintenance is undertaken with due

regard for environmental considerations.

As well as endorsing the above aims and objectives, implementation
of the HAMP will support:

e The current and future requirements of the Whole of
Government Accounts (WGA) and specifically the CIPFA

Transport Asset Code.

e The desire of the Welsh Government to see authorities use

asset management as a framework for the maintenance and

7
Tudalenl14 DRAFT



development of highways, and to maximise the cost benefits of

investment.

The pressing need to manage ever increasing budget

pressures resulting from the national financial position.

The introduction of the Prudential Code.

Arresting the ongoing deterioration in some Highway Assets.
The targeting of increasingly scarce resources to best effect.
A positive response to increasing public expectation.

Links to communities and promotion of economic wellbeing.

Corporate drives towards the regeneration of coastal and valley

communities.

Continuing requirements to improve safety and reduce risks to

highway users.

The implementation of defendable strategies in the context of
the Association of Chief Police Officers Road Death

Investigation Manual.

Compliance with Department for Transport (DfT) booklet

“Maintaining a vital Asset”

8
Tudalenl15 DRAFT



1.3  Progress to Date

This is the fifth update of the Neath Port Talbot CBC Highway Asset
Management Plan first produced in 2006. Some of the significant

actions taken in the intervening periods include:-

e Development of an in-house condition survey for the un-
classified carriageway network and footpaths which is used to

inform works programmes.

¢ |dentification of inventory and condition data for safety barriers
from which a maintenance programme was developed and

actioned.

e The setting up of an inventory database and replacement

system for highway signage.

e A review of the council’'s street lighting following life cycle
analysis culminating in a £21 million investment programme to
replace aged stock financed through prudential borrowing as

part of the Council’'s Forward Financial Plan.

e A drainage review which has created a comprehensive
database of the culverts, gullies and ditches from which
improved maintenance schedules have been produced

improving cyclical maintenance.

¢ In 2015 the Authority published a Flood Risk Management Plan
(FRMP). Some actions completed to date in line with the
Authority’s FRMP include:

9
Tudalenl16 DRAFT



o Locate, record and map the entire drainage infrastructure

in high risk communities.

o Implementation of a more robust and focused

maintenance programme for critical highway culverts.

e An updated programme of works to strengthen substandard

bridge decks, parapets and other structures.

e The completion of the strategic Port Talbot Peripheral
Distributor Road (now named Harbour Way) providing an
alternative diversion route off the M4 and opening up the former

docks area for regeneration.
1.4 Council Expectations from the HAMP

The Council expects, through the continued refinement of The
Highway Asset Management Plan, to continue development of a
more planned and holistic approach to maintaining and improving
highway assets for users, in line with its statutory duties, which

maximises return on investment.

1.5 Corporate Asset Management within Neath Port Talbot
CBC

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council is committed to
continuous improvement. The corporate approach to asset
management, particularly in the management and use of the
Council's property and highway infrastructure assets, forms part of
their commitment to support the objectives of the The Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

10
Tudalenl7 DRAFT



The Corporate strategy helps to:

1.6

Promote a corporate approach to the management of assets in

pursuit of corporate aims and objectives.
Secure continuous service improvement and build an
understanding of the importance of assets in supporting service

delivery.

Manage property and infrastructure holdings and develop

information covering their sufficiency, suitability and cost.

Manage risk across the Council’s range of assets.

Ensure that capital projects are delivered on time and within
budget.

Goals and Objectives of Highway Asset Planning

The main objectives of this plan are:-

To identify the extent, condition and value of the Council’s

highway infrastructure.

To understand asset and maintenance treatment lifecycles

To enable the production of informed Works Programmes

11
Tudalenl18 DRAFT



In mapping the way forward, gaps in knowledge and good practice
have also been identified along with appropriate improvement
actions. Alongside the clinical approach of analysing asset condition
and lifecycle data, the input of elected ward members is also
recognised, with particular regard to local streets in the production of

programmes and actions.

It is also noted that environmental (particularly with regard to coal tar
contaminated surfaces) and economic factors are driving a critical
reappraisal of traditional maintenance treatments. Furthermore, the
requirement to “do more with less” whilst ensuring solutions are “fit for
purpose” has signalled the need to introduce low cost treatments
leaving in place as much as possible of the existing surface material,
which is in itself a finite resource. To this end Neath Port Talbot CBC
has carried out surface dressing schemes using the latest materials
and techniques and is currently assessing preventative treatments
along with re-cycling techniques for the purpose of lowering carbon
footprint and increasing sustainability in its maintenance practice.
Micro-surfacing treatments and jet injection patching are new

systems that are frequently in use today.

The Highways Maintenance Efficiency Programme’s (HMEP) booklet
‘Maintaining a Vital Asset sets out the UK Government’s
expectations of councils in maintaining their networks. If the Council
is to meet these expectations, it can only do so through the better use
of its resources and the adoption of asset management planning. In

addressing the expectations of Government in the areas of footways

12
Tudalenl19 DRAFT



and unclassified roads, the Council has demonstrated a cost effective
and innovative approach through the efficient use of internal
resources, inventory and condition data providing for informed

decision-making.

Considerable progress has been made in the implementation of asset
management principles since the HAMP was first published. The
identification of risks, performance gaps and the subsequent
improvement actions are now enabling an improving level of asset
management aimed, in the first instance, at arresting further

deterioration of the Council’s highway asset.

1.7 Time period and updating of this HAMP

This Highway Asset Management Plan covers the period 2019-2022
albeit the actions are based on longer term lifecycle plans. During this
period the HAMP will be updated to capture any changes as a result
of the ongoing improvements, reviews, budget changes and risk

assessments.

1.8 Application of the HAMP

The HAMP aims to bring together all the Authority’s goals, objectives
and policies utilising both existing and new practices, and sets out
how the principles of asset management are being applied to ensure
the highway service meets the requirements of the Council and
highway users, promoting independence in accordance with the Well-

being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

13
Tudalen20 DRAFT



Effective planning will ensure that the network functions efficiently by
highlighting the maintenance needs of the various highway
components whilst taking into account the effects of damage caused
by increased traffic flows, heavier and larger vehicles, climate
change, expanded operations by utilities, and increasingly

constrained budgets.

The plan is expected to provide an effective management tool for the
running of the highway network with inventory and condition surveys
of the different main highway assets enabling cost and risk analyses
in lifecycle analysis to inform summary actions, service standards and

works programmes.

Continued assessment and monitoring over time will provide the

basis for measuring performance standards.

1.9 Strategic Document Framework

The Neath Port Talbot Council Corporate Plan 2019-22 is produced
to meet the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 (WBFG) and the Local Government (Wales)
Measure 2009 by setting out well-being objectives, improvement
priorities, the steps we will take to achieve them and how we will

measure progress.
Well-being objectives and improvement priorities show how the
Council contributes to the social, economic, cultural and

14
Tudalen21 DRAFT



environmental well-being of Neath Port Talbot and to the following
seven national well-being goals contained within the Well-being of

Future Generations Act:

I'esponsible Wales
Wales

A Wales of
vibrant culture
and thriving
Welsh
Language

A resilient
Wales

A Wales of
cohesive
communities

A healthier
Wales

A more equal
Wales

This contribution is made through the way in which we work in
accordance with the sustainable development principle contained
within the Act.

The strategic document framework below details the relationship
between the various strategic documents within the Council, and

where the Highway Asset Management Plan fits in.

15
Tudalen22 DRAFT



Diagram 1.9.1 Strategic Document Framework

Local Development

Plan

Well-being Plan

Corporate Plan

Highway Asset

Management Plan

Regional

Transport Plan

Operational

Highway
Maintenance Plan

Business Plans

Winter

Maintenance Plan

Flood Risk
Management Plan

16
Tudalen23

DRAFT




2 Asset Description

21 The Highway Asset

Neath Port Talbot CBC has detailed geographically referenced data
sets for the eight main asset groups which are shown in Table 2.1.1

below:-

Table 2.1.1 Neath Port Talbot CBC — Main Highway Assets

Asset Description Elements

Carriageways Including lay-bys, bus lanes etc.

Footways Including  footways adjacent to
carriageways

Structures Including  Bridges, culverts and

retaining walls etc.

Lighting Including Lighting columns, illuminated

signs/bollards etc.

Traffic Signals Including signalised junctions and

controlled crossings

Signage Including warning and regulatory signs.

Drainage Including road drainage manholes,
gullies, culverts (including inlets,
intakes, outlets and outfalls), and

roadside ditches etc.

Road Restraint Systems (Crash

Barriers)

17
Tudalen24 DRAFT




Since the original HAMP was produced in 2006 the Asset inventory
has developed to such an extent that we now also have detailed
information on the following additional assets groups shown in Table
2.1.2 below:-

Table 2.1.2 Neath Port Talbot CBC — Additional Highway Assets

Asset Description Elements
Cycle Routes All cycle routes
Street Furniture Including street name plates, bus

shelters, bins, grit bins, pedestrian

barriers, cattle grids, highway trees,

seating etc.
Road Markings Road markings (limited)
Weather Stations All weather stations
Traffic Calming measures Including plateaus, speed cushions etc.

Bus Shelters

Dog Bins

Post and Rail Fencing

Car Parks

Residents Parking Bays

Salt Bins

Speed Cameras & Speed Advisory
Signs

Telephone Kiosks

Tactile Paving

Pedestrian Crossings

An inventory overview of the main Highway Asset Groups is shown in

Table 2.1.3 overleaf:-

18
Tudalen25 DRAFT




Table 2.1.3 Neath Port Talbot CBC — Main Highway Asset Inventory

Asset Description Amount Unit
Carriageway 854.31 Kilometres
Footways 988.39 Kilometres
Structures:
Bridges 356 Number
Culverts > 1 metre 80 Number
Diameter Number
Retaining walls 649
(in NPT ownership) Number
Retaining walls 1,175
(ownership unknown)
Street Lighting 19,386 Number
Traffic Signals (light 372 Number
heads on junction control | (sets of traffic signals 67)
and pedestrian
crossings)
Signage:
[lluminated 2945 Number
Non illuminated 10,443 Number
Drainage:
Critical and High Priority
Culvert (under review) 90
Road culverts 1011 Number
Gullies 31526 Number
Highway surface water
drains known (survey | 87.6 Kilometres
ongoing)
Safety Barriers /Vehicle 39.87 Kilometres
Safety Fences 368 Sections
Post and Rail pedestrian | 31.3 Kilometres
barrier 498 Sections
19
Tudalen26 DRAFT




2.2 Assets Not Covered by this Plan

Assets not covered by this plan include the following:-

e Motorways and Trunk Roads.

e Footpaths and car parks identified by Estates as being in
Authority ownership but not maintained by the Highway
Authority.

e (Garage compounds owned by others.

¢ Public Rights of Way.

¢ Un-adopted / private roads.

e Lighting to car parks and parks not maintained by the Highway
Authority.

¢ All other assets within the highway that fall under the

responsibility of other organisation such as utility companies.

2.3 Asset Growth

The carriageway asset in Neath Port Talbot has, over the three years
since the last HAMP, grown by 5.41 kilometres, representing a 0.63%

network growth.

This increase has been due to new residential housing developments
in the local area resulting in the adoption of new roads by the
Authority.

20
Tudalen27 DRAFT



This growth has resulted in an increase in other assets such as
footpaths, drainage systems, street lighting and carriageway
markings highlighting the need to periodically update the relevant

asset information.

It is expected that, despite the economic downturn, this growth
pattern will continue over the length of the Plan due to a number of
housing developments, including the Llandarcy Village development
and the development around the Port Talbot Peripheral Distributor
Road (Harbour Way).

In addition, increased use of expensive high specification materials
such as anti-skid and coloured surfacing (normally implemented as
part of accident reduction measures) together with block paviours and
decorative stone flags in town centres (as part of regeneration

schemes) increases the overall cost of asset maintenance.

21
Tudalen28 DRAFT



3 Community Requirements

3.1 Public engagement and reporting

The Corporate Communications and Community Relations Strategy
(2018-2020) was developed to help us meet the requirement under
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, to involve
people in the work that the Council carries out. It has also been
designed to make our collective communications and community
relations efforts more consistent, effective and relevant and to

support the delivery of our Corporate Plan.

A new area on the Council's website ‘ShapingNPT has been
designed to improve communications and engagement. The aim is to
improve awareness of what the Council does and encourage
engagement by simplifying the narrative around the Council’s
Corporate Plan and Annual Reports. We are using citizens’ and wider
stakeholders’ stories to bring the Council’'s work to life celebrating
successes and highlighting areas where more work needs to be done

to achieve our objectives.

With particular regard to the highway infrastructure, the main sources
of identifying local needs is through correspondence and via the
Council’s call centre and Customer Response Management system,
which handles queries and complaints from the public. Requests for
service from the general public are carefully monitored and the

detailed reports, along with accident claims, provide a valuable

22
Tudalen29 DRAFT



source of information. This information can be fed into the budget and

works programming processes.

This Authority has also established a process of dialogue with elected
Ward Members prior to finalising the Planned Works Programmes.
This process affords Members an opportunity to table
concerns/requests in response to the needs of their ward
constituents, which can be considered in conjunction with the works

identified from the condition surveys and other means.

3.2 Results of Consultation and Use of Results

Information in the previous section can help identify specific problem
areas relating to the highway / drainage infrastructure and assist in

identifying:-

e Potential projects for inclusion in future works programmes

¢ Maintenance hot spots

However, whilst feedback is useful it is not intended that the
Highways Asset Management Plan will be particularly driven by
public consultation alone as many of the issues addressed by the
HAMP are technical in nature and need to be considered in the

context of longer term analysis and projections.

It is anticipated that in future years there will be continued
consultation with specific stakeholders, such as statutory
undertakers, to obtain the benefit of their input, to co-ordinate

23
Tudalen30 DRAFT



investment, and ensure a shared understanding of asset
management as it affects their particular areas of interest. This will
help ensure that stakeholder input is appropriately considered in the
establishment of policy and practice adopted by the Authority. Input
from stakeholders is also a valuable source of information concerning
some aspects of the network and associated maintenance strategies.
Their data will, along with technical surveys and other related
information, contribute to ensuring appropriate asset management

decisions are made.

24
Tudalen31 DRAFT



4 Future Demands

4.1 Introduction

This section outlines the demands that we anticipate will be placed on
the highway asset over the duration of this Plan. These demands
together with the associated risks have been considered when

formulating the plan.

4.2 Traffic Growth and Composition

Transport for Wales is developing transport models (computerised
representations of the transport network) to cover the whole of Wales.
These models will represent all the main forms of transport, such as
car, bus and rail and will contain information on the trips that people

make by each form of transport.

The transport model covering South East Wales was developed by
the Welsh Government between 2015 and 2017 and is currently in
use. It is anticipated that the transport models covering the rest of

Wales will be completed by the end of 2020.

These transport models will:
e Give a better understanding of how the entire transport network
works

¢ Allow assessment of the likely transport impact of different

development scenarios, such as where new houses are built

25
Tudalen32 DRAFT



¢ Provide a simple means of testing a variety of new transport
solutions so that new schemes can be proposed that make a

positive difference to people’s lives

Past increases in car ownership and the general reliance on the
private car has put pressure on roads and existing junctions through
increased demand for road space. A number of key roads and
junctions are at capacity and congested which is constraining growth
in some areas and affecting the daily life of residents. The statistics
below, from the Department for Transport, indicate the changes in

volume of traffic over the past 10 years or so.

The volume of traffic by “Class of Road” in Neath Port Talbot (table
4.2.3 overleaf) reflects a reduction in traffic from 2007 to 2010 (from
1.12 billion kilometres in 2007 to 1.03 billion in 2010) but an increase
in traffic from 2010 to 2017, back to a similar figures of that of 2007.
The reason for the fluctuation in traffic is unknown and could be a
result of a number of factors, such as cost of fuel, financial down-turn,

or residents choosing more active forms of travel.

Table 4.2.1 Volume of Traffic 2007-2017

2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017
_Billion
Vehicle 1.38 | 1.34 1.32 127 | 130 | 129 | 130 | 1.33 | 1.38 | 1.37 | 1.38
Km. in Neath
Port Talbot

26
Tudalen33 DRAFT




Table 4.2.3 Volume of Traffic by Class of Road 2007-2017

Motorway | A Trunk- | ATrunk- | A County - | A County - All Major
Urban Rural Urban Rural Roads

2007 - billion 0.55 0.02 0.20 0.11 0.24 112
vehicle
kilometres

2008 - billion 0.53 0.02 0.20 0.11 0.23 1.09
vehicle
kilometres

2009 - billion 0.51 0.02 0.20 0.1 0.23 1.07
vehicle
kilometres

2010 - billion 0.48 0.02 0.19 0.11 0.22 1.03
vehicle
kilometres

2011 - billion 0.51 0.02 0.19 0.11 0.23 1.06
vehicle
kilometres

2013 - billion 0.52 0.02 0.20 0.11 0.22 1.06
vehicle
kilometres

2015 - billion 0.54 0.02 0.21 0.15 0.23 1.14
vehicle
kilometres

2016 - billion 0.52 0.02 0.21 0.15 0.23 1.12
vehicle
kilometres

2017 - billion 0.53 0.03 0.21 0.14 0.24 1.14
vehicle
kilometres

Whilst the overall level of traffic in NPT has been relatively static over
the past several years, demand for road space in some localised
areas is high and/or increasing. As a result, due to the level of traffic,
local topography and the existing road system within urban areas, a

number of congestion hot spots exist across the County Borough.

27
Tudalen34 DRAFT




Within the Neath area:

Pen-y-Wern Junction (Bryncoch, Neath):

Experiences congestion at peak times and any further
development would have an impact on the junction and could
require road improvements between the junction and the
Neath River viaduct. As a result, Neath Port Talbot have
secured Welsh Government funding to construct a scheme
designed to improve a 120m length of highway between two
roundabouts creating two left turn lanes and increasing the

queuing capacity of both of the roundabouts.

Cwrt Herbert / Roman Way:

Experiences congestion at peak times, one factor being the
proximity to Dwr y Felin School and the Neath Port Talbot
College campus. Land adjacent to Roman Way offers an
opportunity to provide bulky goods shopping or housing in a
central sustainable location, but such development could also

increase traffic generation.

Neath Abbey / Tesco:

Experiences congestion at peak times causing tailbacks onto

the A465 trunk road/dual carriageway.

Neath Town Centre (Stockham’s Corner / Cimla Hill / B&Q /
Gnoll / Victoria Gardens):

28
Tudalen35 DRAFT



Faces congestion, air pollution (Victoria Gardens) and in worst
cases ‘gridlock’ at peak times. While development and
regeneration proposals aim to revitalise the town centre,

congestion could constrain demand.

Melincryddan:

Experiences some congestion at peak times in the area
between the Briton Ferry Road / Exchange Road (Lidl's)
junction and Furnace Terrace, there is queuing in a north-

easterly direction

Within the Port Talbot area:

M4 Junctions 41 / 40 (Port Talbot):
These junctions currently provide access points to Port Talbot,
Cwmafan and the Afan Valley. With the completion of the PDR

(Peripheral Distributor Road) the Welsh Government has

experimented with slip road closures, or partial closures (at
Junctions 40 and 41), to discourage the use of the M4 for local
traffic. The results of the experiments are being considered and
whilst junction restrictions may ease congestion problems on
the M4, the changes could make access to some areas more
difficult.

Heilbronn Way:

Experiences congestion at peak times.

29
Tudalen36 DRAFT



e Water Street:

Experiences congestion at peak times.

e A48 Junction at Old Road, Baglan:

Experiences congestion at peak times

e A48 Junction at Sunny Mount and Pentwyn Baglan Road:

Experiences congestion at peak times

Within the Pontardawe area:

e Tesco / Pontardawe Inn:

Experiences congestion at peak times.

e The Cross:
Experiences congestion at peak times. There is little potential to
improve road capacity to address traffic congestion in
Pontardawe, the emphasis will need to be on managing access

to the town.

Recently Completed Developments:

The following schemes have recently been completed or are a priority

for future years:-

e The Peripheral Distributor Road (PDR) Phase 2, also know as

'‘Harbour Way' was completed in October 2013. The new road

30
Tudalen37 DRAFT



eases congestion between J38 and J41 of the M4 by feeding

traffic through the former docks regeneration area.

Through the Regional Transport Plan, access to Kenfig
Industrial Estate has been improved through the modification of
an existing railway bridge with low headroom, allowing an
alternative access for high sided vehicles. The bridge
improvement scheme was completed in November 2012. The
only previous access for high sided vehicles was through the
narrow, suburban roads of North Cornelly, providing limited
potential for development on the industrial estate as these have
consequent Planning constraints on the number of high sided
vehicles that could need access. These improvements allow
these Planning constraints to be removed and allow further

development and business investment on the estate.

The new Baglan Energy Park link bridge was completed in April
2015 and forms an integral connection in a network route
between Port Talbot and Swansea. It also facilitates significant
improvements on the Port Talbot to Swansea Priority Bus
Corridor. The aim of the project was to reduce journey times,
particularly for buses, on the A4286, Afan Way, and the A48,
through Baglan and Briton Ferry, whilst providing improved
access into Baglan Energy Park, permitting continued growth in
employment and investment. Baglan Energy Park is a
significant employment development area identified in the Local
Development Plan (2011-2026).

31
Tudalen38 DRAFT



Proposed Developments:

4.3

Cymmer Viaduct, a Grade Il listed structure, has failed its
structural assessment and is in urgent need of replacement or
bypass. The structure is on a bus route and is currently the only
viable means of accessing the upper Afan Valley. In 1999, as
an interim measure an 18 tonne weight limit and a single lane
working, controlled by traffic lights, were introduced. The long-
term plan is to close the viaduct to vehicular traffic, refurbish it
so as to open it to pedestrian and then upgrade the existing
lower route to make it suitable to larger vehicles. The feasibility
and outline design has been completed and detailed design is
currently taking place with construction programmed for
2020/21.

Utility Activity

Activity by Statutory Undertakers and other Utilities can have a major

effect on the maintenance and management of the road assets which

can generally be detrimental to the life cycle of the asset.

All statutory undertakers are responsible for carrying out their own

reinstatements although they must be to Department of Transport

standards (see New Roads and Streetworks Act 1991 — Specification

for Reinstatement of Openings in the highway).

At present NPT, in line with Department of Transport standards,

enforces a 2 year maintenance period on all reinstatements and 3

years on any excavation greater than 1.5 metres.

32
Tudalen39 DRAFT



Neath Port Talbot CBC as part of its statutory duties inspects a
random sample of 30% of Utility Works during the following three

stages:-

e The process of excavation.

¢ Within 6 months following interim or permanent reinstatement of

the works.

¢ Within the three months prior to the end of the maintenance

period.

Any remedial works required during the maintenance period are
completed by the utility company, reducing any potential future
deterioration of the highway asset and unnecessary costs to the
Authority.

NPT is committed to improving standards of utility reinstatements and
has introduced a Random Sample Coring Program (via an outside
contractor) to check Utility and internal contractors works in the
highway which have accumulated over 500 coring extractions over
this period. The results of the checks undertaken from the
Specification for Reinstatement of Openings in the highway has
resulted in a 80% failure of completed reinstatements which need to
be improved to avoid further deterioration of the highway asset. With
this in mind the Authority has arranged for underperforming
Utilities/contractors to attend “Improvement Meetings" during which

33
Tudalen40 DRAFT



representatives are able to explain the measures to be put in place to
improve reinstatements thus ensuring the life and structural stability
of the highway asset in the future. NPT will continue to undertake
appropriate enforcement action for non-compliance and where
necessary to offer support to encourage continuous improvement in

compliance levels.

NPT also attend Highway Authority and Utilities meetings on a
quarterly basis to discuss planned works with the intention of co-
ordinating the Authority works with all statutory undertakers’ works
and neighbouring authorities’ works in an effort to improve forward

planning and help extend asset life cycles.

Co-ordination and monitoring is important, not only to minimise
delays to the travelling public, but also because the Council is often
criticised for delays caused by traffic management implemented by

utilities for reinstatements works and repairs.

4.4 Climate Change

It is very difficult to forecast changes in climate but there has been an
acceptance that general weather patterns are changing. The
noticeable changes in the past few decades have seen a number of
severe winters and increased rainfall. Some winters have been
prolonged with long periods with sub-zero temperatures and heavy
snowfalls. As a consequence of the recent severe winters the
Authority made the decision to provide a new salt barn providing

additional capacity thereby increasing the resilience of the salt stocks

34
Tudalen41 DRAFT



in an effort to ensure the Strategic Network remains accessible during

severe weather conditions.

Increased rainfall has resulted in short heavy downfalls producing
localised flooding whilst prolonged periods of lighter longer lasting
rainfall have resulted in land becoming saturated and flooding as a
result of excessive surface water run-off. Furthermore it is envisaged
that with the increasing severity of weather conditions flooding will
become more prevalent, testing the existing highway drainage
infrastructure and providing increased infrastructure budget

pressures.

4.5 Changes in Legislation

New and changes in legislation often means the Council having to
react and adapt, which often means an increase in the cost of
maintaining the asset. In 2009 and 2010 the Flood Risk Regulations
and the Flood and Water Management Act came into force in the UK.
In response, the Council has since produced a Flood Risk
Management Strategy and Flood Risk Management Plan, which have
ultimately, amongst other outcomes, identified the critical drainage
infrastructure that will, when operating effectively, reduce the risk of

flooding.

New National Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems became
statutory on 7t January 2019, implementing Schedule 3 of the Flood
and Water Management Act in Wales. The new standards will see a

significant shift from traditional drainage systems, to sustainable

35
Tudalen4?2 DRAFT



drainage which will bring new challenging maintenance demands for
the Authority.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 came into force on
18t April 2016 and has had an impact on decisions going forward, in relation
to the maintenance and management of road assets and on the way

in which services are delivered.

Ageing Infrastructure

As a result of the actions undertaken in line with the Flood Risk
Management Plan (FRMP), the Authority has recently identified a
number of highway culvert crossings conveying historical natural
watercourses which require significant remedial work. It is envisaged
that over the coming years as and when the actions set out in the
FRMP are undertaken, many more highway culverts requiring short

term significant remedial works will be identified.

4.6 Local/Regional Transport Strategy / Demands for
Additional Assets
The following key transport issues have formed the basis for the

development of the Regional Transport Plan:-

e Active travel is being promoted in NPT. Active travel simply
means making journeys by physically active means like walking
and cycling and NPT aim to achieve a significant shift to

walking and cycling as the most sustainable forms of transport.

36
Tudalen43 DRAFT



Walking is key to getting more people choosing to not use cars
as it is ideal for shorter trips. Walking also forms part of public
transport journeys i.e. walking to and from buses, trams and
trains. Positive impacts include reduced congestion, reduced air
pollution, higher quality public realm and better physical, mental
and social health.

Investing in infrastructure and support for walking and cycling
can increase economic growth and vibrancy. Those walking
and cycling tend to spend more money locally than drivers.
Increasing walking and cycling can stimulate economic growth
in urban areas and benefit local shops.

As a result, good infrastructure for walking and cycling is
important, but people also need encouragement, support and
guidance to change their behaviours and switch their journeys

to on foot or by bike.

Road traffic volumes in the region and pressures in terms of
unreliable journey times, localised congestion, reduced air

quality, increased noise, vibration and carbon emission issues.

Road safety issues and associated public concerns: Whilst
there has been a general reduction in serious injuries and
deaths from road traffic collisions, there are wide variations

across the region and for particular road users’ categories.

Disparities in car ownership and use: Whilst overall both have
increased, growth has not been consistent across the region.
Those with cars are able to participate in a far wider range of

37
Tudalen44 DRAFT



opportunities than those reliant on public transport, walking or

cycling for mobility.

Variations in Public Transport provision: These broadly match
population distribution, with higher frequency services and
better coverage to the south and east of the region, where the
majority of the population live, with less extensive provision in
the more sparsely populated rural areas. Rail, bus and coach
services are provided by private sector companies through
mainly commercial services along with services supported with

Welsh Government funding.

Access constraints: Physical access to bus and rail services

remains a barrier to mobility impaired in some locations.

Other key issues that have influenced the Regional Transport Plan

include:-

Freight operation is an essential contributor to the economy but
is planned and delivered by the private sector within European

and UK legislative processes.

Ports and Shipping facilitate the movement of passengers and
freight to and from the region and are a critical link in the

national supply chain network.

38
Tudalen45 DRAFT



The Regional Transport Plan (RTP) links with the National Transport

Plan for Wales and overall the Vision for South West Wales is to:

“Improve transport and access within and beyond the region to
facilitate economic development and the development and use of

more sustainable and healthier modes of transport.”

From this vision stems the following strategic objectives:-

e To improve access for all to a wide range of services and
facilities including employment and business, education and

training, health care, tourism and leisure activities.

e To improve the sustainability of transport by improving the
range and quality of, and awareness about, transport options,

including those which improve health and well being.

e To improve the efficiency and reliability of the movement of
people and freight within and beyond South West Wales to

support the regional economy.

e To improve integration between policies, service provision and

modes of transport in South West Wales

e To implement measures which make a positive contribution to
improving air quality and reducing the adverse impact of
transport on health and climate change, including reducing
carbon emissions.

39
Tudalen46 DRAFT



e To implement measures that help to reduce the negative impact
of transport across the region on the natural and built

environment, including biodiversity.

e To improve road safety and personal security in South West

Wales.

The long term strategy in the Regional Transport Plan developed in

conjunction with stakeholders identifies:-

e Improving land use and transportation planning — through the
use of Accessibility Planning, to ensure that development is

properly located.

e Improving strategic east/west road and rail links — to create
more reliable internal connectivity and improved connectivity

with rest of Wales, the UK and European neighbours.

e Improving Strategic Bus Corridors — to create more reliable and

attractive connectivity between key settlements.

e Promoting integration — to encourage more sustainable travel

choices and reduce the barriers to interchange.

e Improving safety in transport — to reduce personal injuries and

fears for personal safety.

40
Tudalen47 DRAFT



Providing more and better information - to raise awareness on

the range and use of sustainable transport options.

Improving linkages between key settlements and strategic
employment sites — to create a range of attractive passenger
transport and walking and cycling opportunities linking key
settlements with their hinterlands and with strategic

employment sites.

Improving the efficiency of the highway network — through a

range of appropriate mechanisms including demand restraint.

Furthermore a range of policies are identified under the following

broad headings:-

Reducing Greenhouse gas emissions and other environmental

impacts from transport.

Integrating local transport.

Improving access between key settlements and sites.

Enhancing International Connectivity; and Increasing Safety

and Security.

41
Tudalen48 DRAFT



Developments included in the previous Plan and now complete

are.

e Port Talbot to Swansea Bus Corridor. New Clear Channel bus
shelters installed — shelters maintained by Clear Channel

e Neath (Llandarcy) to Swansea Bus Corridor. New Clear
Channel bus shelters installed — shelters maintained by Clear
Channel

e Port Talbot Parkway Station development. Port Talbot railway
station renewal complete — Station building owned by Network
Rail

e Swansea Valley to City Centre Bus Corridor. New Clear
Channel bus shelters installed (part route) — new shelters
maintained by Clear Channel

e Bus priority corridor between Port Talbot Parkway and Bay
Campus New Clear Channel bus shelters installed — shelters
maintained by Clear Channel

e Port Talbot to Neath Bus Corridor. New Clear Channel bus
shelters installed — shelters maintained by Clear Channel

e Port Talbot Modal Interchange Port Talbot Hub Complete — land
exchange still to be complete

e Bus priority corridor between Port Talbot Parkway and Bay
Campus

e Port Talbot to Neath Bus Corridor.

42
Tudalen49 DRAFT



Within the current plan, proposed developments relevant to the Neath

Port Talbot area are:-

¢ Neath Railway Station Improvements - NPT have bid to WG for
feasibility/design funding to create an integrated transport Hub
at Neath Station bringing together both rail and bus travel.

e Coed Darcy southern link. St Modwen are in the process of
submitting an Approval in Principal AIP for a new structure as
part of their housing development.

« Cymmer Bridge and associated works - feasibility and outline
design has been completed and detailed design is currently
underway with construction programmed for 2020/21.

e Baldwins Bridge — joint scheme with City & County of Swansea
who are managing the project - Design complete.

e Park and Share sites close to M4 junctions.

e Multi Modal Freight Facility - Margam Wharf.

43
Tudalen50 DRAFT



5 Levels of Service

5.1 Establishment of Levels of Service

Levels of Service are “the defined service quality (service standards)
in respect of particular asset components against which performance

can be measured for the benefit of users”

Levels of Service are composite indicators that reflect the social,
economic and environmental goals of the community and may relate
to safety, availability, accessibility, condition, environmental impact,
customer service and financial performance (cost). Ideally, levels of
service should create visible linkages between user needs, corporate

objectives and any works undertaken on the asset.

The connection between customer expectations and what can, in
practice, be delivered needs to be understood and communicated to
stakeholders. It is also important that everyone involved in the
process is aware that decisions, which impact on service delivery,

need to align with the overall policies and objectives of the Council.

Defined levels of service are the realistic aspirations that a Highway
Authority strives to meet reflecting statutory obligations, corporate
goals and customer expectations in delivering highway services.
Levels of service need to consider the preservation and physical
integrity of the asset, and also meet the demands of safety,

availability and accessibility.

44
Tudalen51 DRAFT



Key requirements affecting the development of levels of service are:

Legislative requirements: It is a requirement that levels of
service comply with the legal obligations and statutory duties
incumbent on a Highway Authority. Additionally, the adoption of
recognised codes of practice will provide the necessary

guidance to align service delivery with national best practice.

Policy and objectives: NPT sets out its policies and corporate
objectives in documents such as the Local Transport Plan and
Highway Maintenance Plan. Levels of service are not only
determined by local objectives as there need also be an
acknowledgment of the wider national targets set out by the
Government. As a consequence, the budget and asset planning
process is designed to enable strategic choices and decisions
to be made in an informed manner, so that the council can
manage its budgets and services with due regard for prudence,

stability, investment and efficiency.

Customer expectations: The expectations of all road users,
the community and local businesses need to be recognised as
a factor in the service level decision making process. The
provision of better information will enable consultation with

customers on a more informed level.

Best practice guidelines: A number of best practice guidelines
exist that directly influence levels of service. While these best

practice guidelines are not always statutory requirements, they

45
Tudalen52 DRAFT



represent a description of accepted good practice. This can be
particularly important in ensuring that assets are protected
against public liability claims. The most significant best practice
guidance documents relevant to this Plan are the Code of

Practice for "Well-managed highway infrastructure'.

o Affordability: Service options set out to consider the most
economically efficient way of delivering an acceptable level of
service over the long term. Pressures on council funding and
increasing demands on the highway network mean it is not
always possible to secure the required funding to deliver the
desired solution, and budgets influence what can realistically be
achieved. Affordability must therefore be recognised and

acknowledged when setting deliverable levels of service

¢ Availability of resources: The availability of suitably skilled
resources throughout the construction industry is limited and

targets can sometimes be difficult to achieve.

5.2 Measurement and Reporting of Levels of Service

An Asset Management approach provides existing and projected data
to support the decision making process. In practical terms this
provides the necessary information to make informed choices

regarding the identification and assessment of service needs.

Once the requirements driving an asset group’s service level have

been determined it is necessary to develop service options around

46
Tudalen53 DRAFT



these requirements, and evaluate them. This process should clearly

identify the service options applicable to the particular asset group.

As noted previously, service delivery can be influenced by a number
of demands such as legislation, best practice guidelines, Health and
Safety requirements, corporate goals, political influences, customer
expectations and financial constraints. The aim is to improve service
provision through developing or altering current practices, as part of
developing NPT's HAMP, by a process of continued monitoring and

review.

In setting its own standards for asset groups NPT has considered the

following set of generic service levels:

Statutory Minimum: Meeting statutory or legislative

requirements and notes for guidance only.

e Existing: The impact on the asset if current funding levels are

maintained.

o Steady State: To arrest deterioration of the asset and maintain

current condition, performance and value.

e Prescribed Service: An enhanced standard based on

customer expectations and/or political aspirations.

e Optimum Service: An optimum level of service based on long

term economic lifecycle planning.

47
Tudalen54 DRAFT



e Attainable Service: A reinterpretation of the Optimum Service
in light of available resources representing the best long term

return for available shorter term funding.

Ultimately, the chosen option must be a result of a combination of
cost, benefit and risk. Depending on the asset category, the options

evaluation criteria include:

e Programmes and planning

e Safety implications and requirements

¢ Availability of service or asset

e Accessibility to service or asset

e Condition of the asset

e Environmental impact of providing and maintaining the asset
o Customer service, expectations and perceptions

¢ Risk and benefits

e Finance

e Performance targets

In respect of adopted and specified service standards the asset
management process will monitor, review and report on progress and
performance. As such, levels of service, where possible will need to
be measurable and realistic having performance targets that can be

set out and measured using appropriate indicators, including:

e Single Data List (superseded the National Indicator Set
measures (NIS’s) in 2011)

48
Tudalen55 DRAFT



e Local Performance Indicators (LPI’s)

¢ Recording of Response Times

e Customer Complaints Monitoring Procedures

e Condition Surveys

To inform the monitoring process, the tables on the following pages

give examples of asset inspection regimes, maintenance criteria, and

response standards, and these along with other information is

detailed within the Council’s Highway Maintenance Plan:-

Table 5.2.1 Network inspection regime — Inspection frequency

Classification

Safety Inspection

Technical Surveys

Carriageways

A Road Strategic Route,
Main Distributor,

B Road Secondary
Distributor

C Road Link Roads / Local

Access roads

Unclassified | Local access roads

Safety inspection regime

in place

Annual SCRIM (both
directions)
SCANNER

(one direction)

Annual (25%)
SCRIM/SCANNER

Annual visual survey

Footways

Prestige and

Primary Routes

Secondary walking

Biennial visual

survey

Biennial visual

routes Safety inspection regime | survey
Link fways & local | in place Biennial visual
access footways survey
Industrial estates Biennial visual
and other footways survey
49
Tudalen56 DRAFT




Cycleways

Adopted as part of

C'way / Footway in

Remote from

C'way / Footway

Cycle trails

Safety inspection regime

place for cycleways
adopted as part of the

carriageway / footway.

Visual survey

Not undertaken

Not Undertaken

Safety Barriers

Safety Barrier

in place

Safety inspection regime

Condition survey
carried out every 3
years. Principal
condition survey

every 6 years.

Table 5.2.2 Criteria for consideration of Maintenance

Planned Maintenance — Carriageways

Survey Criteria

Further Investigation

Options

Action options (*)

SCRIM: Area below
Investigatory Level
based on DMRB
HD28/04)
Deflectograph: Area
of low residual life
(less than 15 years)
SCANNER: Analysis
of individual
parameters in
accordance with PMS
guidelines

Visual Inspection:
Analysis of 1-5
ratings to create
scheme assessment
lengths

visual site assessment
/ pendulum / sand
patch test / GripTest

visual site assessment
/ core / trial pit

visual site assessment
core / trial pit

visual site assessment

resurface / monitor / survey
following
year / erect warning signs

resurface / reconstruct / monitor

resurface / prevention treatment

resurface / prevention treatment

50

Tudalen57

DRAFT




Planned Maintenance - Footways

Category

Defects

Treatment

Main Shopping Areas

Busy Urban (flexible)

Busy Urban Areas (Rigid)

Other Urban Areas / Rural
Footways

Coarse cracking
Coarse crazing
Depressions > 25mm
Trips > 20mm

As for (i) above

Depressions > 25mm
Trips > 20mm
Cracks/gaps > 20mm
Rocking Flags

As for (ii) or (iii) above

Localised Repair or Restore
Surface

Localised Repair or Restore
Surface
Localised Repair or Restore
Surface

Localised Repair or Restore
Surface
Localised Repair or Restore
Surface

Note: Prioritisation is subsequently undertaken on the basis of

greatest risk.

Planned Maintenance - Kerbing

Category

Defect

Treatment

All Footways

Busy Urban Areas

Other Urban Areas / Rural

Footways

Severe deterioration

Up-stand / kerb height
75mm or less

Kerb deterioration

Up- stand / kerb height
30mm or less

Kerb deterioration

Localised repair or restore
upstand
Localised repair or restore
upstand
Localised repair or restore
upstand
Localised repair or restore
upstand
Localised repair or restore

upstand

51
Tudalen58

DRAFT




Note: Perioritisation is subsequently undertaken on the basis of

greatest risk.

Table 5.2.3 Inspection Regime for Highways

Reactive Response Standards

Defect

Response Time

Road pothole or footway trip hazard > 20mm

Surface depressions which exceed the New
Roads and Street Works Act (NRSWA)
intervention requirements.

‘Knocked Out’ Kerb

Hazardous debris or obstruction in the
carriageway, missing covers

Flooding or surcharging highway drainage

system

1 — 35 Days(*¥)
(normally 2hr, 24hr, or 35 days)

As above (*)

As above (*)

2 Hours

2 Hours

(*) Response time prescribed, at Inspectors discretion based on risk

Table 5.2.4 Inspection Regime for Structures

Bridges, Culverts, Retaining walls and Cattle Grids

Inspection Category Frequency
General 2 Years
Principal 6 Years
Special As Required (*)

(*) Special Inspections can be conducted following a collision or

flooding or where an abnormal load is to pass.

52

Tudalen59 DRAFT




Other Highway Structures, Culverts, Retaining walls etc

Inspection Category

Frequency

General

2 Years or receipt of report/complaint

More frequent inspections are identified in the ‘Structures Database’.

Table 5.2.5 Cyclic Maintenance Frequencies

Activity Frequency
Gully Cleansing
General Annually

Culvert Inlet & Outlet Cleansing
Critical and High priority

Proactive scheduled maintenance
Additional proactive maintenance prior to

forecast heavy rainfall.

Grass Cutting and Hedge Trimming
Adopted R’bouts & Islands

Grassed Verges

Highway Flail Cutting Sites

Safety Cutting

As per detailed schedule but typically,
Minimum 4 cuts per year

Minimum 4 cuts per year

Minimum 1 cut per year

Additional cuts where unusual growth has

created a hazard

Verge Maintenance
Weed Spraying (footways)
Application of Retarders

Noxious Weed Removal

Programme of spraying twice per year in
Summer

Not Used

Ragwort — As and when required (pulled up)
Japanese Knotweed — Selected areas per

year (sprayed)

53

Tudalen60 DRAFT




Activity Frequency

Siding Where vegetation encroaches by 300 mm as
General identified by Inspectors

Cleansing Litter pick —Minimum - 4 times / year - max
General daily

Sweeping —Minimum - 4 times / year -max

weekly

Table 5.2.6 Maintenance of ‘Aids to Movement’

Activity

Frequency

Traffic Signal Maintenance*

Fault Attendance

Urgent fault - 2 hours (repair within 8 hours)

Non - urgent — 24 hours (repair within 72 hours)

Sign Cleaning
Class | Roads
Class Il and Class llI

Unclassified Roads

As required to preserve safety

Road Marking
Reinstatement**
Class I, Class Il
and Class Il Roads

Unclassified

As required to preserve safety

Reflective Stud Replacement

All Classes

As required to preserve safety

* Bulk changes may only be undertaken at certain times during the

week at specified locations.

54
Tudalen61 DRAFT




** Road markings affected by maintenance works or surface dressing

are reinstated within 14 days of the works being completed.

Table 5.2.7 Maintenance of Street Lighting and llluminated Signs

Repair of Faults

Category of Fault Minimum Attendance and
Assessment
Time*

Outages

[lluminated ‘Aids to Movement’
Lighting unit

Section of Lighting

Emergency

To make safe potential electric danger

Associated with public lighting

infrastructure.

5 working days

5 working days

Same day when the fault is on an NPT

circuit i.e. not on a WPD circuit

Within 2 hours

Cleaning and Servicing

Installation

Frequency

Signs and Bollards

Lighting Units

Every site visit

On lamp repair

55
Tudalen62

DRAFT




Fault Detection

Approximately 70% of the Council lighting stock (columns) is
controlled by a central Management system (CMS) which allows

automatic nightly fault reporting.

5.3 Performance Review

Alongside measurement and reporting of Service level performance
and the production of periodic Status and Options reports, actual
performance can, as appropriate, be compared from time to time with
the predicted or targeted performance at the time of establishing the
management and investment strategies for a given asset. In any
event a summary performance report will be presented annually to
the Council’'s Capital Programme Steering Group and Environment
Management Team, in consideration of which any amendments to
levels of service and investment will be considered alongside the

business planning process for individual service areas.

5.4 Existing Level of Service

A summary of asset performance against the existing level of service

is given in Table 5.4.1 overleaf:-

56
Tudalen63 DRAFT



Table 5.4.1 — Performance against existing Level of Service

Level of Service
Sub Category

Existing Level of Service

Carriageways (classified)

Condition

SCANNEeR surveys show the condition of the
Classified network within NPTCBC to be better

than that of the Welsh national average

Investment

A cut in the level of investment will see
deterioration in the highway asset and the value
will decline. Reactive maintenance costs will

increase as a result.

Safety implications

Deterioration will increase the safety risks to road
users, in the absence of increasing reactive

maintenance requirements.

Carriageways (unclassifie

d)

Condition

The in house visual inspections results show a
steady improvement in the condition of the
Unclassified network year on year between 2010
and 2018. The improvement can be attributed to
additional investment under Welsh Government
Local Government Borrowing Initiative. Also, the
carriageway works programme has had a period of
greater priority following previous investment in

dealing with sub-standard footways

Investment

Continuing at base budget levels, without additional
funding, will see deterioration in the highway asset

and in the asset value

Safety implications

Further deterioration, increasing risks to safety of
road users in the absence of increasing reactive

maintenance budgets.

57
Tudalen64 DRAFT




Footways

Condition

In-house visual inspections carried out between
2009 and 2017 indicate an overall deterioration in
the footway network, despite an investment
programme that targeted areas of heavy
deterioration. Carriageway programmes have had
a period of greater priority over footway works

which is now being reviewed

Investment

A rise is anticipated in claim related costs if decline

is allowed to continue.

Safety implications

Deterioration will increase risks to safety of road
users’ in the absence of increasing reactive

maintenance budgets, or greater priority to planned

works

Structures

Condition Bridge Condition Index indicates average condition
as 87-89 (good) however, 19 sub-standard bridges
currently remain in service and are monitored in
accordance with BD79

Investment Funding limited to historical budget. 65% of the

2,290 structures have maintenance or repair works

identified in Structures Work Pool.

Safety implications

Sub standard bridges require monitoring as a
requirement of Management of Highway Structures

- Code of Practice.

Street Lighting

Condition

The majority is now “new stock”

Investment

Major £21 million infrastructure renewal project

funded from Council resources now complete.

Safety implications

Risk of column and electrical cabling failure has

now significantly declined.

58
Tudalen65 DRAFT




Highway Signs

Condition

‘Reasonable’, with some signage life expired.

Investment

Essential renewals currently ongoing.

Safety implications

Any missing mandatory signs in particular are a

safety concern.

Traffic Signals
Condition ‘Reasonable’, with some equipment life expired.
Investment Essential renewals currently ongoing

Safety implications

Fault repair system operated.

Safety Barriers

Condition

Repairs and upgrades were carried out following a
2009 inventory/condition survey and the 2013
Principal inspection/survey. Another Principal
inspection/survey was completed in 2018 and any
concerns identified will be considered and repairs

arranged as necessary within available resources.

Investment

Annual Works Programme

Safety implications

Specific locations where the road edge requires
engineering works before the barrier can be

renewed will need special consideration

Drainage

Condition Ongoing surveys have highlighted that the
drainage infrastructure is an ageing asset and
some locations are in urgent need of repair.

Investment Both proactive and reactive maintenance

undertaken. It is very likely that additional
investment will be required as condition surveys

progress.

Safety implications

In addition to the obvious safety implications
associated with surface water and freezing water
on the highway during winter months, there are

safety issues surrounding the sudden collapse of

59
Tudalen66 DRAFT




5.5 Target Levels of Service
Initial target levels of service are given below. However these may
need to be revised once the Council’s latest Forward Financial Plan

has been finalised and its full impact evaluated.

Table 5.5.1 — Initial Target Level of Service

Main Asset Groups Initial Target Level of Service

Carriageways -Classified | Steady State — with aspirations to move to a
prescribed service level of no more than 7% of

individual road classification requiring maintenance.

Carriageways - Steady State — with aspirations to move to a
Unclassified prescribed service level of no more than 14%

requiring maintenance.

Footways Steady State — with aspirations to move to a
requested service level of no more than 15% of the

footway network requiring maintenance.

Structures Steady State - with resolution of “Cymmer Bridge”
issues.
Street Lighting Prescribed Service — On completion of ongoing

Improvement Programme.

Highway Signs Steady State — with aspiration to move to a
requested service level where less than 5% of signs

are missing or badly damaged.

Traffic Signals Steady State.
Drainage Steady State.
Safety Barriers Steady State.

60

Tudalen67 DRAFT




6 Lifecycle Planning
6.1 Purpose and Importance of Lifecycle Planning
As part of this plan’s development, we will create lifecycle plans to

consider each of the main asset groups. Each lifecycle plan

considers:-

Inventory (amount of asset)

Condition and trends

Maintenance options / Service levels / Risk Management and

Minimum requirement

Establishing maintenance strategies / service standards

Periodic updating of the lifecycle plans enables local knowledge to be

captured and considered.

6.2 Output from Lifecycle Planning

The output from the lifecycle planning process provides 20 year
financial and other projections linked to target levels of service, to

inform the Council’s 3 year Highway Maintenance Proposals.

61
Tudalen68 DRAFT



Lifecycle plans are essential to Highway Asset Management Planning
to provide the longer term context with which to consider asset
management practices, investment, performance and risk

management consistently across all asset groups.

6.3 Lifecycle Plan Contents

Lifecycle plans are working documents, updated periodically as
information is gathered and analysed on each asset group. When

fully populated each Life Cycle Plan will contain the following

information:-

Section Answers Contains

The Asset What assets do the e Inventory details (type size, etc)
Council maintain? e Asset growth statistics

Service What is each asset Customer expectations

Expectations | group required to do? Council objectives for transport
Specific user requirements
Safety considerations,

3rd party use

Environmental requirements,
Network availability,

Amenity considerations

Policies

Inspection Regime

Condition Assessment

Asset Acquisition standards
Routine Maintenance standards
Operational/Cyclic Maintenance
Planned Maintenance standards
Disposal standards

Management | How is this asset
Practices group managed?

Historical Investment

Output from historical investment
Forecast Financial Needs
Valuation: GRC, DRC & ADC

Investment How much is being
spent and should be
spent over the longer
term on this asset
group?

62
Tudalen69 DRAFT




Section Answers Contains
Strategies What strategies are e Relevant Strategy Information
there for the future SOR, HAMP, FRMP
management of this
asset group?
Service What improvement e Asset specific improvement
Improvement | would enhance actions
actions council management
of this asset group?
Works How are works e Existing forward works
Programme programmed for this programme
asset group? e Works programme coordination
e Option Appraisal: treatment
selection
- at a project level
- at a budget category level?
e Public input/consultation via
Members Surgeries
Risk What are the risks ¢ Risk identification
associated with this e Major asset risks
asset group?
Works and How are works e Approved processes
Service delivered or procured
Delivery on this asset group?
Performance | How is the e Performance indicators
Measurement | performance e Current performance figures
of this asset group e Target performance figures

measured and
Managed?

63
Tudalen70

DRAFT




6.4 Status of Lifecycle Plans

Lifecycle plans are being produced for each of the asset groups and

their current status is noted in the table below:-

Plan approaching

Completion

Asset Group Status Comments
Carriageways Update of the More work required
Plan approaching
Completion
Footways Update of the More work required

Bridges and other

highway structures

Update of Plan
approaching

completion

More work required

Street Lighting

Update of Plan
pending

Major £21 million infrastructure
renewal project funded from Council
resources now complete.
Approximately 14,000 units
replaced/upgraded with modern
luminaire and Central Control
Management system. A lifecycle
plan is being produced including the
new infrastructure which is aimed at
maintaining the level of service the

project set out to achieve.

64

Tudalen71

DRAFT




Asset Group Status Comments
Drainage Not started Asset inventory for culverts
(Major culverts complete. Asset inventory for gullies
are covered by complete but data required for
the Highway interconnecting drain systems is
structures ongoing. Filling this performance
lifecycle plan). gap is the next step in plan
development.
Traffic Signals Complete Plan requires updating.
Highway Signs Ongoing Plan requires updating
Safety Barriers Ongoing Following an initial Safety Barrier
condition survey a replacement
programme was completed. A
further condition survey was carried
out in 2018 to assess the asset
condition and to formulate an
updated Lifecycle Plan.
65
Tudalen72 DRAFT




6.5 Status and Options Report (for Major Asset Groups)

Periodic Status and Options reports are being produced for each of

the major asset groups and their current status is noted in the table

below:-
Asset Group Proposed Status Comments
Frequency

Carriageways Every 2 years | Final draft Final approval
completed Required.

Footways Every 5 years | Initial draft Further work
completed Required.

Bridges and other | Periodic Final draft Final approval

highway completed Required.

structures

Street Lighting Periodic Completed. Review to be
Currently on commenced upon
year 7 of 7 year | completion of 7 year
action plan. infrastructure renewal

project.

Drainage Every 3 years | Not started

Traffic Signals Every 3 years | Not started

Highway Signs Periodic Not started

Safety Barriers Every 3 years | Not started

Status and Options Reports will provide an update on the relationship
between existing / future budget options and the predicted condition
of the asset over a 20 year cycle. Monitoring this relationship will

provide data to make more informed decisions going forward.

66
Tudalen73 DRAFT




7 Financial Summary

7.1 Sources of Funding and Budget Allocation

Investment in the Highway Asset is derived from the following funding

streams:-

Revenue: Revenue funding is dependent on Council expenditure
priorities in the context of available income which is derived from
Welsh Government Revenue Support Grant, non-domestic rates,
Council Tax and any other specific Grants. The majority of funding is
therefore derived from Welsh Government and the total budget
allocated to Road Maintenance is split between a number of service

headings based, in large part on historical precedence.

Where additional funds are made available to assist with ongoing
maintenance and management of road assets, such as Road
Maintenance Grants, individual cases are put forward internally within
funding guidelines for consideration following which allocations are

made in accordance with Member priorities.

Capital: Capital Investment is generally funded by Welsh Government
(WG), who provide a supported borrowing element forming the
Authority’s base capital budget. WG also include an element within
the Revenue Support Grant to cover the debt charge repayments on

this borrowing.

67
Tudalen74 DRAFT



The capital base budget allocation is further supplemented by:-

e Unsupported borrowing (prudential borrowing)
e Capital Grants & Contributions
e Capital Receipts

¢ Direct Revenue Financing

Capital Investment Plans are reviewed by relevant Management

Teams and approved by relevant Committees within the Council.

Should there be a requirement to fund additional specific projects
from Prudential Borrowing, a full Options Appraisal exercise has to be
undertaken for all major projects. The Appraisal normally considers
amongst other issues the objectives of the Council, alternative
options and the affordability of loan repayments from existing revenue

resources.

Grants: The Council submits annual bids for additional funding to the
Welsh Government in respect of Transport Grant and Safe Routes to
Communities including Road Safety Schemes and regional transport
packages. In addition the council does, from time to time, receive
additional Grants such as Special Road Maintenance Grant which is
distributed to local authorities based on Road Standard Spending

Assessment (SSA) and is governed by strict criteria.

Within the Revenue and Capital allocations determined by Council
any virement of funds between Service Headings to reflect need are
dealt with at Head of Service level within the Environment Directorate

68
Tudalen75 DRAFT



as far as Revenue is concerned, and within the Corporate Capital

Programme Steering Group as far as Capital is concerned. Any

virement in excess of £100k is dealt with at Corporate Director level.

7.2 Historical Expenditure

Historical investment in roads assets over the last 4 years is as

follows:-
Asset Works  12014/15 2015/16 | 2016/17  |2017/18
Carriageways | Planned |£1,342,000 | £1,138,000 | £1,006,500 |£1,125,500
Reactive /
Routine
Footways Planned |£49,264 £112,500 |£376,500 £109,500
Reactive /
Routine
Structures Planned |£650,000 £319,085 £424,987 £334,190
Reactive / | £266,623
Routine
Street lighting | Planned | £2,000,000 |£2,392,819 | £5,474,096 |£4,112,188
Reactive / | £1,448,276
Routine
Signs Reactive / | £32,911 £32,991 £33,758 £34,445
Routine
Drainage Planned |£253,644 £201,880 £225,439 £301,014
Reactive /
Routine
Traffic Signals | Planned | £82,372 £19,780 £10,000 £35,000
Reactive / | £108,197
Routine
Safety Planned |£258,000 £41,456 £30,429 £50,000
Barriers
Winter Reactive / | £588,362 £510,613 | £529,174 £668,444
Maintenance | Routine
69
Tudalen76 DRAFT




7.3 Predicted Available Short — Term Funding

Asset Works 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Carriageways | Planned £800,000 £800,000 £800,000
Footways Planned £100,000 £100,000 £100,000
Structures Reactive £195,000 £195,000 £195,000
Planned £300,000 £300,000 £300,000
Street lighting | Reactive £429,000 £429,000 £429,000
Planned £4,100,000 £3,592,000 £900,000
[lluminated Reactive £50,000 £50,000 £50,000
Signs Planned Nil? Nil? Nil?
Signs Reactive £33,000 £33,000 £33,000
Planned nil nil nil
Drainage Reactive £1,186,471 £1,186,471 £1,186,471
Planned £300,000 £300,000 £300,000
Traffic Signals | Reactive £67,000 £67,000 £67,000
Planned nil nil nil
Safety Reactive £38,500 £38,500 £38,500
barriers/Post | Planned
and Rail *

* Reimbursement costs as a result of vehicular accidents are pursued from

insurance companies

70

Tudalen77

DRAFT




7.4 Long Term Funding Requirement — Planned / Reactive

Asset Funding |Service 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Type Level
Carriageways | Planned | Steady State | £2,330,000 | £2,330,000 |£2,330,000
(Predicted
Budget) Planned | Overall £2,600,000 | £2,600,000 |£2,600,000
network
improvement

Predicted Carriageway funding to maintain existing steady state of 4.3% of the
network requiring maintenance and to achieve aspirational state of 4.0% with
steady improvement.

Footways Planned | Steady State | £375,000 |£375,000 £375,000
Planned | Overall £765,432 |£765,432 £765,432
network
improvement

Full Footway condition survey completed in summer 2019. Results to be used to
predict annual budget required for steady and aspirational state.

Structures Planned £1,195,000 | £945,000 £1,445,000
Street lighting | Planned £4.100,000 | £3,592,000 |£900,000
[lluminated Reactive £50,000 £50,000 £50,000
Signs
Signs Reactive Not Not Not
available available available
Drainage Planned £250,000 |£250,000 £250,000
Traffic Signals | Reactive Not Not Not
available available available
Safety Planned £30,000 £30,000 £30,000
Barriers

Safety barrier inventory / condition survey completed May 2018 from which
future budget requirement will be determined.

71

Tudalen78

DRAFT




7.5 Asset Valuation

Asset Type Gross Accumulated | Depreciated | Annualised
Replacement | Consumption | Replacement | Depreciation
Cost Cost Cost

Structures 306,523,000 247,847,508 | 860,000

Carriageway | g39 454,000 736,848,000 | 9:634,000

Footways &

Cycle Tracks [ 149,021,000 107,883,000 [ 2,162,000

Street Lighting 16.000.000* Not available | Not available

Signs Not available Not available | Not available
Drainage Not available Not available | Not available
Traffic Signals Not available Not available | Not available
Street

Furniture 26,780,000** 13,229,000 1,283,000

* Based on Prudential Capital sum borrowed to replace 95% of

existing stock over a 5 year period.

** Based on actual renewal costs averaged per metre run on sample

jobs for removal of old, erect new and traffic management costs.

72

Tudalen79

DRAFT




8 Risk Management

8.1 Corporate Risk Management Policy

The Council is committed to the management of risk in order to:

e Meet statutory duties;

e Safeguard stakeholders to whom the Council has a duty

of care;

Support delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan and

associated priorities;

Protect physical and information assets and identify and

manage potential liabilities;

Ensure effective stewardship of public funds, securing

value for money for the public purse;

Preserve and protect the reputation of the Council; and

Build a risk savvy workforce where innovation and a

responsible approach to risk taking is part of its culture.

For the purpose of this policy, risk is defined as:

‘the threat that an event, action or inaction will adversely affect

73
Tudalen80 DRAFT



the Council’s ability to successfully achieve its improvement

objectives and deliver services.”

Risks are categorised as “strategic risks” or “operational risks”:

Strategic Risks: Risks which may threaten the achievement of an
organisation’s longer term strategic goals and objectives and are
often the responsibility of Senior/Executive Management to monitor

and report on.

Operational Risks: Risks which affect the organisation at the

business unit or department level.

Effective risk management is also promoted through:

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA)/Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE)

Guidance —in 2012, CIPFA published an addendum to its report

“Delivering Good Governance in Local Governance: Framework”
which urged local authorities to prepare a governance statement in
order to report publicly on the extent to which they comply with their
own code of governance on an annual basis. This should include how
the effectiveness of their governance arrangements in the year have
been monitored and evaluated whilst also setting out any planned
changes in the next period. The governance statement includes the

Council’s risk management policy, processes and their effectiveness.

74
Tudalen81 DRAFT



The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009

Introduced a duty on the Council to “make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement of its functions”. In discharging this overall
responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting into place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management

of risk.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

(Statutory guidance) emphasises the importance of considering long
term risks that will affect the delivery of the Council’s services and
outcomes for our communities. The sustainable development
principle should be used to frame the risks that we have identified in
the short, medium and long term and, through the steps we have said
we intend to take to meet our well-being objectives, we should

demonstrate that risks are well managed.

Where should risk management be applied?

Risk management should be embedded in a range of processes:
e Include risk assessments in decision making reports. There is
a standard heading within the Council’s corporate template for

reporting risk assessments related to the topic being reported;

¢ Maintain risk registers for all functions, partnership, contracts,

75
Tudalen82 DRAFT



programmes and projects;

e Include progress made in implementing the risk management
policy and in particular progress made in addressing risks

assigned to particular officers within performance reviews;

e Include risk assessments and key actions into business

planning and corporate planning activities; and

e |dentify risks associated with budget savings, new income

generation activities and other financial proposals.

The Council’s Corporate Risk Management Framework (figure 8.1.1
overleaf) set out in this policy is designed to ensure risks are
identified, analysed and evaluated and managed at the right level in

the Council.

e Stage 1 - relates to risk identified within services and functions.

e Stage 2 — covers risk assessment at the strategic level which
will provide information to inform both the Council’'s Forward

Financial Plan and the Council’s Corporate Plan.

e Stage 3 — is the mechanism by which risks can be shared with

partners via the Public Services Board.

76
Tudalen83 DRAFT



Fiqure 8.1.1 Risk Management Framework

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Corporate Plan

Public Services
Board Well-
being Plan

Forward Financial Plan

Strategic Risk Register

A

Operational Risk Register

77
Tudalen84

DRAFT




8.2 Risk Appetite

Risk appetite is defined as “the level of risk that the Council and its

Leadership team are willing to take on, accept, tolerate or be exposed
to in pursuit of the Council’'s objectives.” When deciding our risk
appetite, we will consider the options available to us, the risks that we

can take and those which we need to avoid or reduce as a priority.

The Council is a complex organisation and it is important to
understand that the Council’s risk appetite may be different in some
areas than in others. The risk management framework has therefore
been designed to ensure that risk appetite for the most significant

risks identified is determined by the Cabinet acting together.

The risk registers provide a mechanism for capturing risk appetite for
individual risks and to ensure that all risks are being managed within

Limits that have been assessed and determined as being acceptable.

8.3 Risk Management Process

Step 1 — Risk Identification

Risks can be identified through a range of different mechanisms.
Some of the main methods that will be used include the following

processes:

e Corporate Planning — risks that could impact on the Council’s
Ability to deliver its vision and well-being objectives will be set out
in the Corporate Plan;

78
Tudalen85 DRAFT



¢ Business Planning — risks that could impact on the achievement

of the service/function will be identified within the business plans;

¢ Operational Practice — risks identified through, for example, child
protection practice, MAPPA, MARAC, adult safeguarding etc will
inform the identification of risk within the operational and strategic

risk registers;

¢ Business Continuity and Emergency Planning — critical
activities and functions that have to continue as a minimum during
the disruption of service delivery or when responding to an
emergency will be identified within business continuity and

emergency plans;

¢ Health and Safety at Work — processes for evaluating the risks
arising from hazard(s) taking into account the adequacy of any
existing controls, and deciding whether or not the risk(s) is/are
acceptable, are embedded across the Council. External quality
assurance of the arrangements are routinely undertaken to ensure
risks are being prioritised, resourced and evaluated at operational,

service and strategic levels;

e Technical briefings, national reports and best practice — are
important sources to identify new/emerging risks that may be

relevant within the Council’s local circumstances; and

79
Tudalen86 DRAFT



¢ Analysis of lessons learned, previous losses, complaints,
events, incidents — are all valuable sources of evidence to draw

upon when considering risk.

Step 2 — Analysis and Assessment

Once identified, risks should then be assessed as to their likelihood
and consequences of occurrence, existing controls in operation and
the extent to which further mitigating action is needed. See Figure 2

for details.

We should consider first the inherent risk — this is the risk we have
assessed in its uncontrolled state, before any current controls have
been considered. Once we have an assessment of the inherent risk
we then need to assess the value of existing controls in order to
arrive at a current/residual risk score. Having arrived at the residual
risk, consideration then needs to be given as to whether further
actions are needed and whether the risk should be contained within
the operational risk register or escalated to corporate directors to
assess whether the risk should be contained within the

strategic risk register.

There are three main courses of actions to consider when deciding

on further mitigation:

Accepting the risk — this is when it is considered that no further
action is necessary to manage the risk beyond the routines that are

already in place and subject of monitoring;

80
Tudalen87 DRAFT



Treating/controlling the risk — this will be appropriate when it is
considered the risk is not within tolerance and needs to be reduced

to a more acceptable level;

Transfer the risk — this might be through insuring the risk through the
Council’s insurers, transferring service delivery to another

organisation;

Operational Risk Analysis — each directorate management team is

responsible for identifying risks to be entered onto the Operational
Risk Register, supported by the performance management support
officer. Work will be informed by the processes described in Step 1.
Directorate management teams will also identify risks to the
Corporate Directors’ Group that may be suitable for inclusion on the

Strategic Risk Register.

Strategic Risk Analysis — The Corporate Directors’ Group is

responsible for identifying risks that should be contained in the
Strategic Risk Register. The Strategic Risk Register will set out the
main risks to the delivery of the Council’s services. The Corporate
Directors Group will be responsible for advising the Cabinet on the

strategic risks facing the Council.

The risk assessment is undertaken utilising the 5x5 risk evaluation

matrix overleaf:

81
Tudalen88 DRAFT



Table 8.3.1 Risk Matrix

Key
Likelihood Impact
1. Very 1. Low o
o
likely 2. Low/ __g
2. Unlikely | Medium 2
-
3. Likely 3. Medium
4. Very 4. Medium /
Likely High
5. Certainty 5. High

l Low Risk

Medium Risk . High Risk

The impact of the risk should be assessed on the basis of:

¢ Reputation

e Finances

e Significant service / operational change

The table overleaf provides a framework for scoring the likelihood /

impact of risk occurring.

82
Tudalen89 DRAFT



83
Tudalen90




84
Tudalen91




Step 3 — Monitoring and Review

At least once a quarter, each operational risk will be reviewed and
updated. Residual risks which carry a medium or high rating will be
formerly considered at directorate management team meetings where
the necessity for further mitigation is to be considered. Following
consideration at the management team meetings, risks which
continue to carry a high score must be escalated to the Corporate

Directors Group.

Corporate Directors’ Group will review entries on the strategic risk

register at least quarterly. Risks will be revised in light of progress
made in mitigating those risks. Corporate Directors Group will also
consider high risks escalated from directorate management teams. In
considering escalated risks, corporate directors will consider whether
further mitigation is required and whether the risks escalated should
remain in the operational register or should be placed on the

Strategic Risk Register.

The Strategic Risk Register will be reported by the Corporate

Directors Group to the Cabinet on a six monthly basis.

The medium and high risks contained in the Operational Risk
Register will be reported to the relevant cabinet boards on a six

monthly basis by the relevant head of service/director.

85
Tudalen92 DRAFT



It is recognised that there will be times when events can materialise
that will required a more agile response. To ensure that such events
routinely trigger a review of the Operational or Strategic risk registers,

risk management will be a standing item on all management

meetings across the Council.

8.6 Major Asset Risks

Table 8.6.1 below gives an indication of what have been / are

considered to be NPT’s Major Asset Risks:-

Table 8.6.1 — Major Asset Risks

Risk

Current Controls in Place

Carriageways

The Carriageway Lifecycle plan and
Status and Options Report indicates
that if current expenditure levels and
treatments are maintained the
condition of the highway asset will
continue to deteriorate and that an
additional £500,000 / year is required

to stand still.

Regular condition surveys (SCANNER
and SCRIM for classified and visual for
unclassified) keep engineers informed.
The introduction of preventative
treatments into the forward works
programme whilst not stopping

deterioration could help slow it down.

Safety Fencing

Condition of barriers throughout the

County Borough.

Survey identified main risks throughout
the County Borough which were dealt
with via a 3 year renewal programme,
other than those sites associated with

edge deterioration that require special

funding which are ongoing.

Tudalen93

86
DRAFT




Risk Current Controls in Place
Structures
Cymmer Bridge Weight restriction and signal controlled

Deficiency in Principal Bridge

one way working in place. Diversionary
route being designed.

New regime implemented resulting in a

Inspections. full cycle of principal bridge inspections
being undertaken which may identify
unplanned maintenance issues.

Drainage

Any significant requirements that may
arise from the Flood Risk Management
Plan.

Gap in knowledge on gully carrier
drains.

Condition of ageing highway culvert

crossings

Mitigating factors identified as part of
the Plan.

Inventory currently being undertaken.

Surveys being undertaken to identify

condition.

Street Lighting

Column collapse and electrical system

failure.

Problems identified in the 2006/07
Lifecycle Plan led to an options
appraisal being undertaken, which
resulted in a major infrastructure

renewal programme being completed.

87
Tudalen94

DRAFT




9 Improvement Plan

9.1

Milestones

Improvement action plans for each asset group are included in the

relevant lifecycle plan. Table 9.1.1 below indicates improvements to

date, together with key milestones identified for implementation as

part of this Plan.

Table 9.1.1: Summary of Performance Gaps and Action Plan

Performance Gap

Milestone / Actions

Target Date

General

Working practice

Transition to new Code of
Practice

Complete gap analysis of
working practices vs new
Codes of Practice

Some areas reviewed and
completed — analysis ongoing

Carriageways

Surface condition
data gap

Extended carriageway visual
condition surveys to all
thoroughfares on both the
classified and unclassified
network

Utilise Survey Team to
identify condition on scale 1 to
4

Update condition survey

Complete

Complete

Complete

Need to review
management of
road c’'way
pavement with
respect to skid
resistance

Review approach and further
develop strategy as
necessary, making
appropriate amendments to
the HAMP and Highway
Maintenance Plan as
required.

Ongoing.

88
Tudalen95

DRAFT




Performance Gap

Milestone / Actions

Target Date

Improved methods
required for
targeting of roads
for preventative
maintenance

Work nationally to develop
‘deterioration modelling’ to
assist with works
programming — since previous
HAMP, condition data surveys
have provided improved
means to inform forward work
programmes.

2019 - 2022

Ongoing works in line with the
CSSW national asset
management framework
contract.

Risk assessment Continue to explore potential | Ongoing

and pavement benefits of the application of

management risk exposure indices in works
programming.

Integrated Development of in-house Ongoing

computerised ‘system’ using GIS.

maintenance

system for

improved

efficiencies

Detailed overview Development of a preparation | Ongoing

of potential road
schemes with

pool to assist with
maintenance planning and

costs, prioritisation.

measurements and

inventories

Insufficient Develop forward works Gas 5 year works plan

coordination with
utilities for Forward
Works Programme

programme to be coordinated
where necessary with utilities.

received and incorporated
into the programme
consideration process.

Removal of some
sound road surface
in maintenance
techniques.

Development of ‘fit for
purpose’ preventative
maintenance solutions as
cheaper, sustainable and
more environmentally
friendly alternatives.

Trial areas identified through
condition survey and
incorporated into HAMP

89
Tudalen96

DRAFT




Performance Gap

Milestone / Actions

Target Date

Footways

Update condition of
footway network

Utilise Survey Team to
identify condition on scale 1 to
4 condition data used in
preparation of annual works
programme.

Most recent (7t survey
completed in 2019

Improvement in
coordination with
utilities for Forward
Works Programme

Develop forward works
programme to be coordinated
where necessary with utilities
companies.

Gas utilities 5 year works plan
received with planning
underway. Ongoing

Risk assessment Continue to explore potential | Ongoing.
and works benefits of the application of
programme risk exposure indicies in
management works works programming.
Reduce expensive | Development of preventative | Ongoing
maintenance costs. | maintenance regime and use
of new treatments as cheaper,
sustainable and more
environmentally friendly
alternatives
Implement Gather bridge element data Ongoing
Inventory through biennial general
Population inspection programme.
Strategy.
Structures
Implement Bridge Transfer Condition data into Ongoing
condition indices CSSW/Atkins Spreadsheet to
allow direct comparison with
other Welsh Authorities
Incomplete Bridge | Transfer Survey and Microfilm | Ongoing
Detail Drawings/ details into AutoCAD
Records Drawings
Bridge Key Extend KPI register to include | Ongoing
performance for BCI, Availability, Reliability
indicators & Work bank
Retaining wall gaps | Complete survey of retaining | Ongoing
walls
Principal Principal inspections Ongoing

inspections on
major structures

programmed (52 No.)

90
Tudalen97

DRAFT




Performance Gap

Milestone / Actions

Target Date

Compliance with Implementation of the code’s | Ongoing
the UK Bridges recommendations
Boards Code of
Practice for
Highway structures
Formal Prioritisation system to be Ongoing
maintenance applied to work bank
selection process
Drainage
Minimal knowledge | Instigate a condition survey of | 2020
of the condition of | the critical highway culvert
highway culvert crossings. Will be dependent
crossings on additional resource and
funding.
Planned drainage Implementation of a thorough | Ongoing
maintenance on survey and cleanse of the
roads with a speed | drainage infrastructure on all
limit of 40mph and | roads within this category
over
Lack of detail for Instigate inventory of Ongoing
connecting drains connecting drains forming part
forming part of of gulley / highway drainage
gulley / highway systems.
drainage systems
Lighting
Address aged Implement Lighting Renewal complete
lighting stock Project for street lighting
(excludes illuminated signs)
Gap in data of Complete inventory of ongoing
underground authority owned underground
cabling cable
Gap in data of Complete inventory & complete
controlled crossing | condition survey of controlled
infrastructure crossing infrastructure
No long term Identify investment profile for | complete
controller controller replacement to end
replacement of plan period
investment profile
No long term |dentify signal refurbishment | complete

Signal
refurbishment
investment profile

investment profile to end of
plan period

91
Tudalen98

DRAFT




Performance Gap

Milestone / Actions

Target Date

Highway Signs

Signs missing or
need attention

Replacement of absent signs
when identified — problems
significantly reduced since
last HAMP following
investment under the
Neighbourhood Service
initiative.

Ongoing

Cleaning Backlog

Neighbourhood Services to
complete cleaning backlog
and thereafter continue with
cyclical cleaning in
accordance with HAMP

Routine maintenance on-
going.

No rolling
programme of
replacement

|dentify replacement
programme starting with life
expired stock

Continuous inspection /
replacement regime in place

Crash Barriers

95% of safety
barriers data held
in inventory

Maintain inventory/condition
data for safety Fences

3rd condition survey
completed in 2018.

Other Assets

No maintenance
programme for
other assets

Establish maintenance
programme e.g. street
furniture

Existing survey data to be
rationalised. Development of
programme for collection of
required asset inventories —
ongoing

92

Tudalen99

DRAFT




10

10.1 Responsibility for Delivery

Management & Control of the Plan

The following people are charge with the delivery of this Highway

Asset Management Plan. Their roles are as follows:

Post / Position

Name

Role

Environmental
Management Team
Streetscene and
Engineering Cabinet
Board

Capital Programme
Steering

Group

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Draft approval of the HAMP

Approval of the HAMP

Monitoring of financial information
relating to the HAMP

Head of Streetcare
Services

Highways and Drainage
Manager

Neighbourhood Services

Mike Roberts

Steve Owen

Andrew Lewis

Allocate and prioritise resources
to facilitate implementation of
asset management strategies and
provide a link to corporate

strategies in consultation with

Programme Manager
Highways Asset
Management

Officer

Steve Bevan

Manager other sections as necessary.
Lighting Services Manager | Mike Key
Asset / Traffic & lan Carter Co-ordinate asset management,

development and updating of the
HAMP and associated
documents, monitoring and
implementation of various

improvement actions.

GIS Manager — Senior Mike Thomas | Holder of the asset inventory and
Assistant condition data.
93
Tudalen100 DRAFT




Departmental Finance Sian Davies Provision of any financial
information required in relation to
the HAMP.

Network & Programme lan Carter Implement / support development

Manager of the HAMP and asset

Engineering Manager Hasan Hasan | management strategy. Input to

Lighting Services Manager | Mike Key updates of HAMP documents and

Drainage Manager Colin Deere production of integrated works

Street-Scene Manager Andrew Lewis | programmes and reactive
highway maintenance.

10.2 Review and Update

The HAMP document will be reviewed on a three year cycle and the

appendices updated periodically as required.

Position Frequency Date of Next Update
HAMP 3 yearly April 2022
Appendices As required Not applicable

94

Tudalen101 DRAFT



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



cotTusrepnL

1. Details of the initiative

Initiative description and summary: Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council — Highway Asset Management Plan

Service Area: Streetcare

Directorate: Environment

2. Does the initiative affect:

Yes No
Service users Y
Staff Y
Wider community Y
Internal administrative process only N
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How
| Negligible | Know | H/M/L | might it impact?
Age N The HAMP will have no impact on anyone with protected
Disability N characteristics.
Gender Reassignment N
Marriage/Civil Partnership N
Pregnancy/Maternity N
Race N
Religion/Belief N
Sex N
Sexual orientation N




yoTusfepnL

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes [ No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) /
Negligible | know | HIM/L | How might it impact?
People’s opportunities N The HAMP will have no impact on people’s opportunities to
to use the Welsh communicate in Welsh.
language
Treating the Welsh N The HAMP does not impact on provision to ensure staff can
language no less use their first language of choice.
favourably than English
5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /
Negligible | know | HIM/L | How might it impact?
Tomaintainand N L | The HAMP will not affect biodiversity
enhance biodiversity
To promote the
resilience of
ecosystems, i.e.
supporting protection of N L The HAMP will not affect resilience of ecosystems.
the wider environment,
such as air quality, flood
alleviation, etc.

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

2




SoTusfepnL

Yes

No

Details

Long term - how the initiative
supports the long term well-being of
people

The HAMP will improve well-being, increase efficiency and improve the
highway. The road network provides opportunities for people to access
their place of work, as well as their leisure & social activities, and is a vital
component to the health of a community. Essentially, it is vital in
facilitating the safe and effective movement of goods and people.

Integration - how the initiative
impacts upon our wellbeing
objectives

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Equality
Act 2010 encourages a more joined up approach to road maintenance and
travel. The provision of a well maintained road network plays an important
role in supporting the local economy and the overall health and wellbeing of
communities.

Involvement - how people have
been involved in developing the
initiative

People have not been involved in developing the HAMP. The production
of the HAMP has brought together practitioners responsible for the different
asset groups within the Council and follows the principles established
nationally in Wales through the County Surveyors Society.

Collaboration - how we have worked
with other services/organisations to
find shared sustainable solutions

The HAMP is the result of collaboration between internal sections of the
Council. Without such collaborative working, it would not be possible to
reach a solution where the well-being of the community is improved to the
extent that the initiative will realise.

Prevention - how the initiative will
prevent problems occurring or getting
worse

The HAMP sets out the Council’s objectives, policies and strategy for
managing its highway infrastructure assets. It recognises the importance of
its highway infrastructure in supporting corporate, national, regional and
local objectives and recognises new legislation, such as the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory
Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011.

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required




90TuSsEpPN L

Reasons for this conclusion

After completing the assessment it has been determined that this proposal does not require a full Impact Assessment (second
stage). The HAMP has a positive impact on service users, has no adverse impact on people who share protected characteristics

or on people’s ability to use the Welsh language.

The HAMP embraces the sustainable development principle, by contributing to the Council’s three well-being objectives. It does
so by improving the wellbeing of both children and adults within the community by efficiently maintaining the highway network
and providing safe passage for highway users

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required

Reasons for this conclusion

Name Position Signature Date

Completed by S ,l\\l/letwork and Programme %{‘L‘a‘ 06 Jan 2020
anager ) :

Signed off by M, {LL_/J(- AN Head of Service/Director hw i




Eitem yr Agenda4

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

N Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board
17" January 2020

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport
David W. Giriffiths

Matter for Decision
Wards Affected: All

List of Approved Contractors

Purpose of the Report

To seek Members’ approval to amend the List of Approved Contractors.
Executive Summary

To seek approval for Contractors to be included on the List of Approved
Contractors and for Contractors that have not completed the Health and Safety
renewal checks to be removed from the list.

Background

Members will be aware that on previous occasions reports concerning the List
of Approved Contractors have been presented to Cabinet Board.

The process gives local companies an opportunity to provide goods and
services to the Council.

The full list of categories is set out in Appendix A for your information.

Tudalen107



Financial Impacts

No implications.

Integrated Impact Assessment

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.

The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix B, has indicated that a more
in-depth assessment is not required. A summary is included below:-

The report is seeking approval to include additional contractors onto the
existing List of Approved Contractors.

This does not affect any group of people and or impact the Welsh language,
biodiversity or the five ways of working.

Valleys Communities Impacts
No implications.

Workforce Impacts

No implications.

Legal Impacts

No implications.

Risk Management Impacts
No implications.

Consultation

There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.

Tudalen108



Recommendations

That the Approved list is amended as follows:-

Firms to be added to the List of Approved Contractors

The following firms have applied to be included on the list and have passed the

required assessments:-

Asbestos Consultants Europe Ltd

Firm Category
J Manny Ltd 21
Waters Roofing Ltd 17a-e
Forest Traffic Services Ltd 9

31 (Survey work only)

Firms to be removed from category on the List of Approved Contractors

The following firm has applied to be removed from the list for the following

categories:-
Firm Category
Jehu 12,13

Firms to be removed from List of Approved Contractors

The following firms have asked to be removed from the List of Approved

Contractors:-

Firm Category

Treforest Tiling Ltd 178

Granville Noise Insulators Ltd 21c, 111

Paul Jones-Domestic Energy Assessqg 111

Reel (UK) Ltd 21g, 111

R M Electrics 41,42, 43,47, 48, 62, 68, 70
Lappset UK Ltd 104

Tudalen109



Reasons for Proposed Decision

To keep the List of Approved Contractors up to date and as far as possible,
ensure a competitive procurement process.

These recommendations to be adopted for the purpose of supplying a List of
Approved Contractors for invitation to tender within the relevant category.

Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period.
Appendices

Appendix A — List of Categories for List of Approved Contractors

Appendix B -- First Stage IIA

List of Background Papers

None

Officer Contact

Hasan Hasan, Engineering Manager

Tel. No: 01639 686463
Email: h.hasan@npt.gov.uk

Amanda Phillips, Programme & Commissioning Manager
Tel. No: 01639 686483
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen110


mailto:h.hasan@npt.gov.uk
mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk

Appendix A

General Services
Signs

Plant Hire

Security

Clinical Waste

Pest Control
Re-Cycling

Waste Disposal (e.g. Car, Computers, Steel)
Crowd Control

. Traffic Management
0. Portable Buildings
1. Scaffolding

TSP NOoOORWN =

Building Construction / Maintenance
12. Building Construction £50,000 - £200,000
13. Building Construction £200,000 - £1m
14. Building Construction over £1m
15. Minor Building Works below £50,000
16. Works of Adaptation below £5,000
17. Re-Roofing
a) Felt & Asphalt below £10,000 / above £10,000
b) Tiles & Slate below £10,000 / above £10,000
c) GRP
d) High Performance Coverings
e) Sheeting & Cladding
18. Supply &lInstallation of Floor Finishes
a) Flexible Sheet, Tiles, Carpets
b) Jointless
c) Rigid Tiles, Slabs, Mosaics
d) Wood
19. Plastering
20. Painting & Decorating
21. Supply & Installation of Windows/Doors (Windows to BS 7412,
Doors to PAS 23/1, PAS 24/1 to BS 7950 Kitemark Scheme)
a) PVCU (using Aluplast System)
b) Timber
c) Aluminium
d) Steel
e) Roller Shutter

Tudalenl111



22.
23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.

32.
33.
34.
35.
36.

f)  Security Doors

g) Automatic Doors

Suspended Ceilings

Welding / Fabrication below £5,000

Welding / Fabrication above £5,000

Stonework Repair / Restoration / Cleaning
Glazing & Safety Filming

Wall Tie Replacement

External Wall Insulation

Damp Proofing / Dry Rot / Woodworm Treatment
Cavity Wall and / or Loft Insulation

Asbestos Handling & Removal, Asbestos Surveys & Asbestos
Consultancy Services

Window Blinds

Shop Fitters — Specialist Joinery

Refurbishment of Laboratories

Clearance of Void properties

Works to Listed Buildings

Mechanical & Electrical Engineering

37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44.
45.
46.

Domestic (including Housing) Plumbing & Central Heating below £50,000
Domestic (including Housing) Plumbing & Central Heating above £50,000
Commercial Heating & Ventilating below £100,000

Commercial Heating & Ventilating above £100,000

Domestic (including Housing) Electrical Installation below £50,000
Domestic (including Housing) Electrical Installation above £50,000
Commercial Electrical Installations below £100,000

Commercial Electrical Installations above £100,000

Gas Boiler Maintenance

Maintenance of Building Management Systems for Heating & Ventilation

Mechanical & Electrical Specialist Services

47.
48.
49.
50.
51.
92.
53.
o4.
55.

CCTV

Intruder Alarms

Fire Alarms

Warden Call System

Lifts

Swimming Pool Plant Equipment

Water Systems Cleaning & Chlorination

Ductwork System Cleaning & Sterilisation

Domestic & Commercial Kitchen Equipment Maintenance

Tudalenl112



56.

S7.

58.
59.
60.
61.
62.
63.
64.
65.
66.
67.
68.
69.
70.

Supply & Installation of Specialist Kitchen Equipment / Fittings
Installation, Testing & Maintenance of Local Exhaust Ventilation (LEV)
Water Systems — Risk Assessment

Supply & Installation of Pipework & Ductwork Installation

Supply, Installation and / or Servicing of Automatic Door Systems
PA Systems / Sound Systems

Stage Lighting

Service / Repair of Kilns

Supply, Installation & Servicing of Leisure Services Equipment
Specialist Steelwork (stainless Steel & Fabricated Works)
Lightening Conductors

Fire Fighting Equipment including Hose Reels

Smoke / Fire Detectors

Stage Equipment including Curtains, Gantry, Special Effects etc.
Computer / Telephone Cabling

Civil Engineering

71.
72.
73.
74.
75.
76.
77.
78.
79.
80.
81.
82.
83.
84.
85.
86.
87.
88.

Civil Engineering £0 — £25,000

Civil Engineering £25,000 — £250,000
Civil Engineering £250,000 — £1m

Civil Engineering over £1m

Land Reclamation

Sewers & Drainage

Hard & Soft Landscaping

Ground Investigation

Demolition

Surfacing, Carriageway & Footways
Surface Dressing

Road Markings & Reflective Road Studs
Carriageway Slurry Surfacing & Footways
Fencing

Gabion & Blockstone

Steel Fabrication below £25,000

Steel Fabrication above £25,000

Bridge Works, New & Maintenance

Civil Engineering Specialists

89.
90.
91.
92.

Concrete Repairs

Diving Inspections & Works within Water
Bridge Deck Expansion Joints

Bridge Deck Water Proofing

Tudalen113



93. Soil Nailing

94. Sewer Relining

95. Sewer Surveys

96. Safety Fencing

97. Bridge Parapets (Manufacture & Installation)
98. Access Plant for Inspection

99. Bridge Parapet Painting

100. Painting of Structural Steelwork

101. Aboriculturalist

102. Weed-spraying

103. Weather Forecasting

104. Playground Equipment

105. Specialist Cleaning

106. Synthetic Pitches and Sports Facilities

107. Bus/Cycle Shelters

108. Traffic Signals

109. Street Lighting

110. Street Furniture

111. Specialist Contractor not listed above — please specify type of work

Tudalenl114



Appendix B

UOIJBJUBLIO [BNXaS

Xas

Joljog/uoibijay

aoey

Ruuseyepy/Aoueubaiyg

diysisuped pan/abensepy

Juswubisseay Japuag)

Ampgesiag

SIS SIS SIS IS S

aby

&roedw 31 ybiw
moH/(eouapiaa Buipnjoul) uoisioap 1NoA 10 SUCSEdY

TIWH
3oeduw)

mouy | ajqibibanN
j.uoQq JOUON

oN| sex

118y} jo asnedaq ajdoad uo joedw| aAgeiul 3y} s9oq ‘¢

o

Ajuo ssed01d anensSIUIWPE [BUIBlU|

Aunwiwoo Japipy

Hels

$I9SN 80IAI9S

sa)

39945e aARERIUI 8y} S90Q T

1) 4

:9)ed0)004IQ

JUSWIaINd0Id

ealy adIAIag

10)2eU02 [eUO}ippE ppe 0} |eacidde — s10j0B3UOD JO IS1| parosddy

:Arewwins pue uopduasap sAgeRiu|

sAneniu; oy} jo syiejeq )

Tudalenl115



‘019 ‘uoieInd|E

pooy ‘Ajjenb se se yons
‘JUSLLIUCIIAUS JapIM BU}
Jo uonoayoud Bupoddns
‘8’1 ‘swa)sAsods

10 aoual|isal

ay) sjowoud o]

Aysienpoiq soueyua
pue ulejulew o

éyoedwui 31 3ybiw moH | T/W/H | mouy | ajqibyiBeN
{ (eouapiaa Buipnjaul) uolsioap Jnok 10) suoseay | Joedw) | juog JOUON | ON | SaA

:Ajsienipolq uo yoedwn sAeRIuUl 8Y} SO G

ysiBug ueyy Ajgeinoney
$s9| ou abenbueg)
s ey} Buneas |

abenbue|
Ysiap eyl asn o}
saipunpoddo s ajdoay

&yoeduwn 31 3yB1w MoH | I/I/H | mouy | S1aIBiIBaN
| (pasn @auspina Buipnjoul) uoisidap inok 10j suoseay | Joedw) | 3uoQg JOUON | ON | SeA

:uo joedw aageRIul 9y} saoq ‘v

Tudalenl116




9SI0M

"1 dN 10} SHJOM SxeNSpuUn Bumab Jo Buinooo swa)qold Juanaid

0} Ayunuoddo au) sI0}0BJUCD [BD0] SMOJ|E SIOJOBIIUCYD JO IS paaciddy sy} ) 1M SAEINIUL BY} MOY - UojuaAald
"SHIOM

ayeuspun o} Bulysim Ajuouiny ayj Ul sjuswpedsp jje Aq asn oy s|qejiese SUOIIN|OS a|geuleIsns paleys puly

s11si| panoiddy ay|  (sa1)fuobajes sy} 10} SHIOM eHSpUN O} JIGeNNS 0} suoijesiuebiofsaines JIBUJ0 YIm

ale s10)0elU0) Jey) Bupjoayo ul panjoAul usaq aney siuswpedsp |elansg A payI0Mm BABL M MOY - UoljeIoqE||0D)
‘Ajojes pue Ljeay ‘|ejuswiuonAug “Ajjenp “‘A)jIgy [ESIUYDS] "SouUBINSU|
10} S10J0BIJUOD) B} UO SHO8YD USNEUSPUN SARY Sjuswipedap snouep
‘usyeHapun usaq aAeYy SH09YD |EIDUBUY [BUIS)XT

1sl| pano.idde ay} uo paspnjoul annenul sy) Buidojaaap ui panjoaul

2q 0} AJjIge)INS 119y} SUILLIS)ap 0) PasSasse Uaaq sey JOoeiuod) ay | » uaaq aney ajdoad Moy - JUSWSA|OAU|
"S)I0M EUIPUN O} | N AQ pajoenuod aq
0} Ajunpoddo ay) saiuedwos [eso saalb siojoenuod Jo 1si| peacidde ey
"}iom jusdep Buunoas ybnoiyy pajersualb

yjeam ay} jo abejueape aye} 0} ajdoad Guimole ‘sanunpoddo yuswAojdwa saaposalqo

apiAoid 0] SWUl SY) MOJIE [|IM SIUL “Ull4 8Y) Yyim syJom aingoid 0} | 4N Buiaqg|iem ino uodn sjoedwi

S|geUD ||IM SI0JOBIUOD JO ISI| panoiddy ay} ojuo suul{ [euonippe Buinoiddy A anjjeniul ayy moy - uonesBaju|

ajdoad

‘s9|nJ JuUswWaInd01d S, | JN YPM 2ouUeploode Ul painoold aq 0} Jo Buiag-jjlam wua) 6uoj ay} spoddns

SWIl 9|qEUS [[IM SIC}OEIUOD JO ISI| panciddy auyj ojuo sLully Jo Uclippe ay | P aAljeiul 8y} moy - uud) Buon

sire3sg ON | S8A

:(Bunjiom jo skem g) ajdiourid Juswdojanap ajqeurelsns ay} aoeIquia IARERIUI 3Y} S80(] °9

Tudalen117



6LZ16l Hodsuel | g Bupssulbu3 jo pesH SUIHUD ‘M PiAeq Aq yo paubig

6L°ZL'9l Jabeuepy Buussulbug ueseH °| ueseH Aq pajejdwon

aeq UORISOd sweN

LIOISN[OUOD SIY} 1O} SUOSEDY

pannbai s1 (abejs puosas) Juawssasse joedwi ||}

‘Bupjiom jo sAem any au 1o Aysianiporq ‘abenbue| ysiap) ayy 10edw 1o pue sjdoad jo dnoib Aue joaye jou seop siy|
'$10j0B1UOY) 1O 1817 panociddy Bunsixs sy} 0juo 10}0ENJUOD [BUOIIPPE UE apnjaul o} jerosdde Bunyses s1 podas sy

LOISN|OLOD SIY) 10} SUcSESy

paunbal jou si (ebe)s puosas) JusLussasse oedull |Inj

:(ajenndoidde se 3o13) Juswissasse anoqe uo paseq - uonele|saq ‘L

Tudalen118



Eitem yr Agenda5

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

~ Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board
17t January 2020

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport
David W. Griffiths

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: Cimla

Proposed 20mph Zone Speed Cushions, No Waiting, No Loading or
Unloading at Any Time, No Entry except for Buses and One Way Order:

B4287 Afan Valley Road, Ridgewood Gardens and Greenwood Drive,
Cimla, Neath

Purpose of the Report:

To obtain Members’ approval to advertise the above scheme, as indicated in
Appendices A & B.

Executive Summary:

The report outlines the proposed Traffic Regulation Orders and the reason why
the Orders are required.

Background:

The proposed Traffic Regulation Orders are required due to the construction of
the new Cefn Saeson Comprehensive School.

The 20mph zone and speed cushions will reduce vehicular speeds in the
vicinity of the School.

Tudalen119



The proposed parking restrictions will prevent indiscriminate parking in the area
in the interest of highway safety.

Financial Impacts:

The work is to be funded by the developer.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.

The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix C, has indicated that a more
in-depth assessment is not required. A summary is included below:-

A full impact assessment is not required as the proposals will provide a benefit
for the local community.

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No implications.

Workforce Impacts:

No implications.

Legal Impacts:

The scheme is to be advertised for a 21-day period as part of the statutory
process.

Risk Management Impacts:
No implications.
Consultation:

A consultation exercise will be undertaken when the scheme is advertised.

Tudalen120



Recommendations:

That approval to advertise the proposed 20mph Zone, Speed Cushions, No
Waiting, No Loading or Unloading at Any Time, No Entry except Buses and
One Way Order on the B4287 Afan Valley Road, Ridgewood Gardens and
Greenwood Drive, Cimla, Neath is granted.

The proposed Traffic Regulation Orders be advertised and if no objections
are received, the proposals be implemented on site.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To reduce vehicular speeds and to prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest
of highway safety.

Implementation of Decision:
The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period.
Appendices:

Appendix A - Plan: Proposed 20mph Zone & Speed Cushions — Afan Valley
Road, Cimla, Neath

Appendix B — Plan: Cefn Saeson School — Proposed Traffic Orders
Appendix C — First Stage IIA

List of Background Papers:

None

Officer Contact:

Martin Brumby, Project Manager Highways — Engineering & Transport

Tel. No: 01639 686013
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk

James Kane, Senior Assistant Engineer — Engineering & Transport
Tel. No: 01639 686465
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk

Tudalenl121


mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk
mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk

Owp: fox_.lleoomnvbg%wwmm UjBD SUOZ HdIN 02\88USLOS SUIBILMMZOFSIN A

LOHL/ 4S /09ELL  oypumme / C W \ i
9]E0S O) JON | wes [ f///N/ B i paspog b 4102 Cosof
AP R e i Rt R RN et ezaton fonng sy thig
b | pesnsty son | e ) ./////_ ey eseqeieq pus ukdon ukeioa N\ | [T
[—— on oI ||\|w||‘.\.|‘|‘|‘ ~
HLY3N VI S —

avod AITTVA Nv4Y — —
SNOIHSNO Q33dS 2 B Qvo ATTIVA

INOZ HANOZ A3SOd0oYd . NV 282¢ &

=L [ o

992 LIVSHLVIN
e ADHINT NSDYE
A TINNHE SO FHL
ANFNNOHIANT 40 HOLD3H0 3 80 480D
LN HITO

LHOGSNVHLONY SNREIINIOND

gy PUNCJD) 18N UOSSES WeD

wo | & | u |0 siFeg o

Buissoig
uedl|ad

pasodoid

¥V XIAN3ddvY |- — it 100U2S UCsRES WeD

auoz ydwioz Bunsixg

o Bupeig

sa|qe) poads

pasiel pasodoid -
suolysno

paads pasodoig -
8uoz
ydwgg pesodoid

|
ATA
peEs
SEMBLIO SSSIUN SAUSW I U1 SUCISUSWIP IV 2

ONvH A8 AJANIWY 38 LON ATINOHS
aNY DNIMYHA QWD W SISIHL L

Appendix A

) o

Tudalenl122




Appendix B

w%.wom_.\fm\oomhwtg:omsw UJED BUOZ HdW 02\ BWa4 IS JWRILIAM-ZOFSIV A

COYL/ A4S/ 09ELYL o nmen

ITYOS OLLON | wmsf

&1,030 meg | 6L030 weg | en030 ewg

HiH | Pasddy BOW | PN @0 uneq

ONBROD PR oNel

SY3IAHO 2d4vdl 03S0d0Hd

TOOHOS NOS3VYS N430

g XIAN3ddVv

$38Ng 1d30X3
ONIddOLS ON d350d0dd — mem

Sd| 70 gHIY HLIM

S3NITMOTI2A 318N0a)

ELIN

ANY 1V ONIAYOINN ONY

ONIQYOT ‘ONILIVM 40
NOILIE/HONd 03S0d0OYd — mem

26852000 SUBUPID B0 1A paopim)
PINY 107 LOICE JEVEPD BJUCID NEIWEY B JIBHIVEH O
Z6E£2000) ABning sourupig
€402 Wby sseqeieq pue wHukdo] umoI) &
95Ug0r] ABA NS DUBLRID ¢

paes
BSIWIB40 SSBHUN SENS WL Ut SUCISUSWIP |} T

“ONWH A8 O30NINY 38 LON TINCHS
ANY SNIMYHO QYO SI SIHL |

@ S3LON

100425 UosEag W3

Tudalen123



Appendix C

joleg/uoIbeY

aoey

Anuwejep/Aoueubaid

diysiauped jarp/ebelsey

wswubisseay Japuan

Angesiq

SUS IS S S S S

aby

&yoedun )1 jybiw
MOH/(2auapiaa Buipnjoul) uoisioap Jnok 10} suoseay

VWH
joedw

mouy | ajqibiBan

j.uoQg

JoUON | ON | SaA

11194} Jo asnedeq ajdoad uo Joedw) aaneiul ay) seoq ‘g

Aluo ssaooid aanelSIUILLPE [BUISJU|

Ajunwiwod JspIpy

Hels

SJ9sn VIS

°N

SOA

Jo9ge aAReRIUI 3y} S90Q 2

juswuoJIAUg :9)elojoallg

ElWID ealy 991AIaS

poomabpiy ‘peoy As||eA ueyy 28z — 19pI0 Aepp suQ pue sasng 1o} 3daoxg Anug o ‘ewi] Auy je Buipeojun
10 Buipeoq oN ‘Buipepy oN ‘suojysny peadg ‘suoz ydw gz pasodoid :Arewwns pue uondusssp aApeniu|

YjESN ‘E|ul) ‘9ALI(] POOMUISIL) puy SU3pien

aAReRiuI 3y} JO S|IEJRQ ')

Tudalenl124



Tudalen125



"2}@ ‘uoljelns|e

pooj} ‘Ayjenb Je se yons
‘JUSLUILOIIAUS JapIM BU)
A Jo uonoasjoud Bupoddns
‘9’| ‘swayshsoos
Jo 2aualjisal
oy} ayowolid o)

Ausianpolq aoueyua
# pUE UIBJUIBW O]

éyoedw 3134Biw MoH | TWH | mowy | 3jqiBiBaN
1 (89uapiAs Buipnjoul) uciSIoap INOA 10j sUOSedy | jJoedwy | juoQq JBUON | ON | S3A

:Apssanipoiq uo Joedwn aageniul ay} seoqg g

ysijbug uey) Ajgeinoaey
ssa| ou abenbug|
A usiapn 2y Buneasy

abenbue)
ysiep\ 8y} esn o}
p saiunpoddo s,sjdoag

&yoedun 31 3B moH | 1/myH | mouy | 2ldi6BaN
| (pasn asuapiaa Buipnjoul) uoisioap inok 10j suoseay | joeduw) | j,uog JoUopN | ON | S9A

:uo Joedull aAReRIu 8Y) S80Q ‘P

A UOIBJUSIIO [BNXaS

» Xag

Tudalen126




‘Riajes Aemybiy Jo 1salsjul ay) ul Bunped sjeulwLosSIpul

9SIOM
Bumeb Jo Bulnaoo swaejqoid uanaid

wenaid pue spaads Jenoiyaa aonpal ||im awsyos pasodoud ay | » JilM SAIIBIIUI SY) MOY - UCIU3A3Id
SuOIIN|OS a|geulelsns paleys puy
‘aAleniul sIUyy uo Jaylebol payiom aAey UOIDas 0} suojjes|ueblofsaoines JaUjo yum
|ebia| ayy pue ejwiD 1o} Jequisw |90 3y} yiim Buoje suonoss shemybiy ay | A pax)Jom SABY @M MOy - UoKeloqe]jo)
aAEnIul
“aAllBINUI SIY} UO Jay)abo] paxiom aAey UOoSs ay) Buidojansp ul paajoaul uaaq
|eBs| au1 pue ejwi Joj Jaquiaw [es0] aul ypm Buole suoijoes shemybiy sy ~ aney o|doad MmOy - JUSWIAAJOAL}
saAnaalqo
‘Alases Aemybiy Jo 1saisjul ay) ul Bupped sjeujwLosipul Buiaqjem 1no uodn sjsedw
wenaid pue spaads Jenoiyaa 2onpal ||IM awayos pasodold ay | A aAleniul syl moy - uonesbaju)
ajdoad
‘Ayayes Aemybiy Jo ysalajul ayy ui Bunyed ajeuluuossipul jo Buiag-jjam wus) Buo| ay) spoddns
juanaid pue spaads Jenaiyaa sonpail |Im swsayos pasodoid ay | s BAlleINUI BY} moy - waa} Buo
s|iejaq ON | S9A

:(Bunjiom jo shem g) ajdiounad Juswdojanap ajqeule}sns ay) aseiquia aaneniul ay) ssoq ‘9

Tudalenl127



612161 Hodsuei] g Bunsauibug jo pesH SUIBUD "M PireQ Aq yo paubig

6L°ZL 9L 1abeueyy Buusauibug ueseH ‘| uesey Aq pejsjdwon

ajeq uon§sod swep

UOISN|2UOD SIY} IO} SUOSEDY

palinbai s1 (obeys puooss) Juswssasse oedwl [Ny

‘Ajunwwos jeao| ay Joj Jauaq e spiaold ||Im sjesodoid ay se paninbal jou S| Juawssasse 1oedw [Ny v

UOISN[OUOD SIY} JO) SUOSEaY

pamnnbal jou si (a6ejs puogas) Juswssasse joedw [Ny v

(ayendosdde se yon) Juswssasse anoge uo paseq - UoReJePA(] "L

Tudalen128



Eitem yr Agenda6

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

~ Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board
17t January 2020

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport
David W. Griffiths

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: Blaengwrach

Proposed Prohibition of Waiting at Any Time and Prohibition of Waiting,
Loading and Unloading at Any Time Order:

Edward Street, School Street, Heol Nedd, Fothergill Road, Heol Wenallt
and Cefn Gelli, Cwmgwrach, Neath

Purpose of the Report:

To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the above
scheme, as indicated in Appendix A.

Executive Summary:

10 letters/emails were received objecting to the proposals.

The report outlines the objections and the recommendations for the scheme.
Background:

The local Councillor and residents have expressed concerns regarding
indiscriminate parking in the area.

The bus operator has brought to the local Councillor’s attention that buses have

difficulty negotiating the following junctions due to vehicles parking on the
junctions in question:-

Tudalen129



e Cefn Gelli and Edward Street

e Edward Street and Fothergill Road
¢ Heol Wenallt and Fothergill Road
e Cefn Gelli and High Street

Financial Impacts:

The work will be funded from the Capital Works Programme.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.

The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix C, has indicated that a more
in-depth assessment is not required. A summary is included below:-

A full impact assessment is not required as the proposals will provide a benefit
for the local community.

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No implications.

Workforce Impacts:

No implications.

Legal Impacts:

The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period as part of the statutory
process.

Risk Management Impacts:

No implications.

Tudalen130



Consultation:
A consultation exercise was undertaken in October 2019.
10 letters/emails were received objecting to the proposals.

The objections are summarised below:-

¢ Residents on Cefn Gelli believe that the proposed parking restrictions would
impact upon them being able to park their vehicles outside their properties.

e A resident has requested that the proposed Order be reduced at the
junction of Cefn Gelli and Edward Street.

e The proposals are excessive and will transfer the existing parking problems
into neighbouring streets.

After a meeting with the local Councillor, it was decided to amend the proposals
as indicated in Appendix B.

Recommendations:

That the objections be overruled in part and the proposed Prohibition of Waiting
at Any Time and Prohibition of Waiting, Loading and Unloading at Any Time
Traffic Regulation Orders on Edward Street, School Street, Heol Nedd,
Fothergill Road, Heol Wenallt and Cefn Gelli, Cwmgwrach, Neath be amended
(as detailed in Appendix B to the circulated report) and implemented on site,
and the objectors be informed accordingly.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.

To assist the bus operator in providing its service to the village.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period.

Tudalen131



Appendices:

Appendix A - Plan: Proposed Traffic Orders — Cwmgwrach

Appendix B — Plan: Proposed Traffic Orders — Cwmgwrach

Appendix C — First Stage 1A

List of Background Papers:

None

Officer Contact:

Martin Brumby, Project Manager Highways — Engineering & Transport

Tel. No: 01639 686013
Email: environment@npt.qgov.uk

James Kane, Senior Assistant Engineer — Engineering & Transport
Tel. No: 01639 686465
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen132


mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk
mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk

Appendix A

_ Bmp: 5,93@9:&28“_ WO BIMELUMD UIIBS A 19BHIOZ 6 | S.0H1\SOWSYDS JWELIHM-ZOFSIN A

_ LO'OLEBBD  oym

usei
LY @000k L | wes
o] e ] o] wo] | emm
_ oo _ ni_ e war umeag
Rp—— P

HOWVIMO WD

SY3AHO0 Diddvel DmmO&OW_&u.E —

992 VS HLVAN

J2pIo awy fue e
guﬁo‘o:,mc_._i;ezguu_xm

Jepio Buniesm o Bugsixy

18puo awn fug 1e Buipeo
ou 'Buyem o pesodo)d

JBpI0 Bl
Aue je Buyem oy pesadold

ATA

2lets

pi
BSWUBLID S5BIUN SRS Ui SUCHUBWD I T

ONvH A9 QIONINY 39
ANV ONIMYHT T

LON OTNOHS
WO WSISIHL b

3 o

100LE8ED ovemeo |

Tudalen133



Appendix B

|
2 HIE .
g 2 3 4 i3 |«
L H = S
S o
3 2 Q% g e Pt '§ Ié P
B = P 2 ™ z|a
g : T 55§ af s |° N AR
g g2 25 H & 5 i, 2 ©
sl 32 3 2 22 S F .
Bles 8 g2 gg g £ = 55555 < FEIE
£ 3 gg 5§ £ 2= : & Eesal 5] als
. £E £8 I &w 2 Foaiier| B i3 g
£z & B °83z2%| o E el =2
Sy E E T w =R
35 % i g © 2|2
=3
3 o 5 8 2|0
£y e :
ES] s «|2
: ; HE

— )
= \ \ %
/\ A TR
\ b
|\
A\
AN
\ W\

rder to be

<« —
Proposed No waiting at

v 1001EBED o | wobiy
I I I

VMs402-JK\Traffic Schemes\TRO's 18 20\Heol ¥ Felin Cwmgwrach FwMPleQBJw.OLA‘dﬂg

Tudalen134



Appendix C

jellag/uoibijey

soey

Auwisiepy/foueubalg

diysiauped |In1D/ebeLiep

juswubisseay Japuag

Ampgesig

SIS SIS S>>

aby

&yoedw 31 3ybiw
moHj(asuapiaa Buipnjoul) uoisIoap JNok 10) SUOSEaY

T1NH
3oedw]

mouy | ajqibyBan

juoQg

jauoN

ON

SaA

1118y} Jo asnedaq ajdoad uo joedwn aaneniul ay} ssoq "¢

Ajuo sse001d sAENSILILIPE [BUIBU|

Ajunwiwiod JapIpy

Hels

s18Snh 90IAag

°N

sa)

:3oaye sARERIUI Y} S90Q °Z

JUSWUOIIAUT :8}eI0}DalI(]

yoeimbBuse|g :ealy ao1nAIag

ujeg pue jjjeusp [02H ‘Peoy 11161au30L ‘PPN [09H 9941S |00YIS 190118 pJemp3 - 1opiO aw) Aue je Buipeojun pue
Buipeo ‘Buniep Jo uonqiyoid pue awn Aue Je Bugiep Jo uoniqiyo.d pasodold :Alewwns pue uopduosep argeniu)

yjeaN ‘yoseambBuma ‘oo

9DE}G J5i1 - JUSWISSassSy Joedu)

aAnERIUL 8Y] jo s|ieleg L

Tudalen135



Tudalen136



TJUSWIUOIIAUS 13pIM 3L}
Jo uonosjold Buipoddns
‘2’1 'swieysAsooe

Jo aoual|Isal

ay) sjowoid o)

Aysionipolq ssueyua
s pue ureurew o

&1oedw 3 1yBjw moy
| (@ouapiae Buipnjaul) uoisioap Jnok 1o} suoseay

TWN/H
joeduj

Moy
j.uoeqQ

a1qi61|6aN
/auoN

ON | SeA

:Risiaaipoiq uo }oedwi aaneniul 3y} s90q 'S

ysiibu3 uey} Ajgeinoney
ss3| ou abenbue|
» ysiap eyl Buness |

abenbue|
ysiom sy osn o
A saniunpoddo s ajdoay

&yoedwi 31 3ybiwu moH
1 (pesn @suepiae Buipn|aul) uoisidap JNoA 10} suoseay

T/NH
3oedw)

Mmouy
j.uoQ

a|qibybaN
JOUON

oN | saAx

:uo Joedwi aageniul 3y} seoq ¥

uonjejusLIo [Bnxag

Xag

Tudalen137



28I0M

‘Mojes Kemybiy Buiyeb Jo Bulinooo swsjqoid jusasid

10 1saisul ay) ul Bupped sjeulwnosipul Juaaald |jim awayos pasodold ey A [IIM SAlBIUI U} MOY - UoljuaAald

SUOIN|OS ||geulB}SNS paleys puly

‘aAleNIul SIY} uo Jay)abo) paxyiom aney uonoas |eba) ayy 0} suojjes|ueblo/saoines Jayjo ypum

pue yoeimbuae|g Joj Jaquuaw [ea0] ay} yum Buoje suopoas sAemybiH ay | » pa)iom aney am moy - uoneloqe|jo)

aAneniu|

“‘aAnelIul SIY} uo Jsy)sbo) paxiom aney uolss |eba) sy} 8y} Buidojansp ul panjoaul usaq

pue yoeimbuee|g oy Jaquuaw [eo0o] ay} yum Buoje suonoas sAemybiy oy » aney aydoad Moy - JuawWaA|oAU|

sanioalqo

‘Kjajes Aemybiy Buiagjiam 1no uodn syoedw

Jo 1sausjul 8y} ul Bunjed ayeulwosipul Juaaaad |m awsyas pasodoid ay | P SaAnejul 8y moy - uonelbisyu)

a|doad

‘Kejes Aemybiy Jo Buiag-jjam wus) Buo| ay) spoddns

4O 1sasajul sy} w Bupjied sjeulwosipul Juaaald |m awayos pasodoid ay | A aneniul aul moy - wus} Buo
sjejag ON | So9A

{(Bupjiom jo shem g) ajdiounid jJuswdojanap sjqeurejsns ay} aseiquis asneniul ay) s8o(q "9

"0)° ‘uonelns|e
pooyj ‘Ayjenb ne se yons

Tudalen138



6LZ21L'6lL podsuel | ¢ Buussuibu3 jo pesy SUIIJLD ‘M Pireq Aq yo peubig

BLZL 9L JeBeueyy Buussuibug ueseH | ueseH Aq pejodwon

aeq uonisod SweN

UoISN|2UO0D SIY} IO} SUOSESY

paiinbai s) (abejs puodas) Juswssasse Joedw Ny v

‘Apunwiwon [eao) sy} Joj Jyauaq e spioid |im sjesodoid ayj se palinbail jou si Juswssasse oedw ny v

uoIsSnouo? siy} 10} suoseay

paunbai jou s] (9bejs puooas) Juswssesse Joedwl [Ny v

:(sjenidoadde se jon) Juswssasse ancge uo paseq - UoeIe[IA L

Tudalen139



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Eitem yr Agenda’/

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

~ Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board
17t January 2020

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport
David W. Griffiths

Matter for Decision
Wards Affected: Blaengwrach
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting at Any Time and Prohibition of Waiting,

Loading and Unloading at Any Time Order:
Heol y Felin and High Street, Cwmgwrach, Neath

Purpose of the Report:

To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the above
scheme, as indicated in Appendix A.

Executive Summary:

Six letters/emails were received objecting to the proposals.

The report outlines the objections and the recommendations for the scheme.
Background:

The local Councillor and residents have expressed concerns regarding
indiscriminate parking in the area.

Financial Impacts:

The work will be funded from the Capital Works Programme.

Tudalenl141



Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.

The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix C, has indicated that a more
in-depth assessment is not required. A summary is included below:-

A full impact assessment is not required as the proposals will provide a benefit
for the local community.

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No implications.

Workforce Impacts:

No implications.

Legal Impacts:

The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period as part of the statutory
process.

Risk Management Impacts:

No implications.

Consultation:

A consultation exercise was undertaken in October 2019.
Six letters/emails were received objecting to the proposals.

The objections are summarised below:-

¢ Residents on Heol y Felin believe that the proposed parking restrictions
would impact upon them being able to park their vehicles outside their
property.

Tudalen142



e A resident requested that a resident only parking scheme be implemented
on Heol y Felin.

After a meeting with the local Councillor, it was decided to amend the proposals
as indicated in Appendix B.

Recommendations:

That the objections be overruled in part and the proposed Prohibition of Waiting
at Any Time and Prohibition of Waiting, Loading and Unloading at Any Time
Traffic Regulation Orders on Heol y Felin and High Street, Cwmgwrach, Neath
be amended (as detailed in Appendix B to the circulated report) and
implemented on site, and the objectors be informed accordingly.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.
Implementation of Decision:

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period.

Appendices:
Appendix A - Plan: Proposed Footway & Traffic Orders — Heol y Felin,
Cwmgwrach

Appendix B — Plan: Proposed Footway & Traffic Orders — Heol y Felin,
Cwmgwrach

Appendix C — First Stage II1A

List of Background Papers:
None

Officer Contact:

Martin Brumby, Project Manager Highways — Engineering & Transport
Tel. No: 01639 686013

Email: environment@npt.gov.uk

James Kane, Senior Assistant Engineer — Engineering & Transport
Tel. No: 01639 686465

Email: environment@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen143


mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk
mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk

Appendix A

TN
WB A0

BRSO 4L
T RMLO04 TR0
oy

PPN 20 40 YOS
ey

IO L ONY ONEINDNE

2Une) Y0QR1 04 RPN
Joqie) 110d ppaL-IRrse] J0uk

spo
o) e 19 Biapeon ou
“BUBIBM N Poscdasg

200 sun AuE
Bussiui o8 posodos

(el
PEMBEO I S04 KIS U SLOIBINIP I T

ONYH A8 Q3NEINY 38 LON
AWNOHS GNY ONIMYHO OV ¥ S SIHL |

[ SN

7 WOEBED ypay 0 .
] - 1
] w] ] ] o]
....; ot 7 81_ y e -

Aemico) o
uosuse pesodoigd

sl

pespdu

Py
pegieg

o [

Appendix B

Tudalenl144



o

ma

FroNE=y

OISR VY CIEENEN

-
FRCETE s — )

9 A OFH
51,580 HIHEOWwar | wo peonpss QL | w

sep0
sun fus e Bupes) ou
“Buyiom o pesaiosy

opo eury dve ®
Bugiem oy pasedos

(ateted
05 MEDLEE 5 SN SHSMUIIL U SLOISLOUIP I T

ONVH AB O3GNIWY 38 LON
AWIOHS OMY DMIMYHD OWDW 81 BHL |

) a0

,
V] p—
] =

[ =] ] ] o] =
[ | o] o] | =

HOTHVENND

o 4

SERR0 DiHL

P

Appendix C

Tudalen145



xag

Jaljeg/ucibiay

aoey

Auwsyepy/Aoueubaid

diysiauped nan/ebeusey

Juswubisseay 1opuan

Aungesiq

aby

S SRS S

£3oedun 31 jyBiw
MoH/(aauapiaa Buipnjoul) uoisioap Jnok 10) SUOSE3Y

TINH
3oeduw)

mouy] | ajqi6iBaN
j.uoq JBUON | ON | S8A

:n1ay) jo asnedaq ajdoad uo joedw saieUl 8y} S80] ‘E

Aluo ssaooid aaljesSIUILLPE [BUISIU|

RS

AJUNWIWO? JaPIAA

Hels

s 198N 90IAI9G

N

SoA

:Joaye aaneRIul 3y} seoq

JusWuUOoJIAUT :3)el0}93lIq]

yoeimbuselg :ealy 321AISS

yieaN ‘yoesmbwmy o9 ybiH pue ulje4 A |09H — JapiQ aw Aue je Buipeojun pue
BuipeoT ‘Buniep jo uoniqiyold pue awiy Aue je Bunieps jo uoniqiyold pasodoud :Aiewiwns pue uogdussap aaeniu|

SAneniul ay; jo sjiejeq ‘L

Tudalen146



"0]8 ‘uonelns|e

pooy ‘Ayenb Jie se yons
‘JUSWIUCIIAUS Japim au]
Jo uonoayoid Buipoddns
‘9'l ‘sWa)sAs00d

JO @oual|isal

ay} ajowoid o

Ajsianipolq aaueyua

A PUE UIBjUIEW O |
&oedwi 31 Jybiu moH | W/H | mouy | 3jqibyBeN
| (@ouapiaa Buipnjaul) uojsioap anok 10j suoseay | Joedwy) | 3,uoqg JOUON | ON | S9A
:Risi1aaipolq uo joedw) aAenRIul Y} S90Q 'S
ysijbu3 ueyy Ajqeinoney
ss9| ou abenbue|
usjom oy buneas |
abenbue
US| 8u) asn 0}
» saniunpoddo s,sjdoagd
&yoedw 31 3ybiw moH | /IH | mouy | 3lqiByBaN
1 (pesn asuapiae Buipnjoul) uojs|oap anok 1o} suoseay | Joedw | 3,uoqg jouoN | oN | saA

:uo 3oedwi sAeERIUl By} S0 b

|~ |

_ UOIJBIUBLIO [BNXSS

Tudalen147



28I0M

‘Alayes Aemybiy Bumeb 1o Buninaoo swajqold Juanaid

10 1sass)ul ay) u Buned sjeulwlosipul Juaaald |m swayos pasodoud ay | s [lIM SABRIUL BY} MOY - UOIIUBAIH

SUORN|OS 3jqEUIBISNS paJeys pul

"sANenIul SIY) uo Jsyebo] paxsom aney uoioas [ebs) sy} 0} suonesiuebilo/saoinies 19Yjo yim

pue yoeimbuse|g 1o} JaqLusiu [ed0] ay} Ypm Buoje suooss sAemybiy ay | A PS}JOM SABY 9M MO - UOlJeIOqE.|j0D)

anneniul

"sAljeniul s1y) uo Jayjebo] paxiom aney uoijoes ebs] ey oy} Buidojansp u| panjoAul Usaq

pue yoreimbuse|g 1o} Jaquiaw [B20] au} yym Buoje suonoss shemybiH sy | A aney ajdoad Moy - JUSWIA|OAU|

sannaalqo

‘Kojes Aemybiy Buiaqgjiam 1no uodn spoeduw

10 152Ul ay) Wi Buipied sjeuiwiosipul Juaasid [Im swayos pasodoid ay | A aAneRul 3y} moy - uonesBbaju]

o|doad

‘Aiajes Aemybiy Jo Buieg-jjam wis) Buo| ay} spoddns

Jo Jsasajul ayy w Bunped sjeulwLosipul Jusaald |Im aweyos pasodoid sy | A anjeRiul 8y} moy - uuay Buon
s|ielag ON | S9A

(Bupjiom jo shem g) ajdisund Juawdojaasp sjgqeureisns sy} soeIqUIL IARERIUI Y} s20Qq "9

Tudalen148



612161 Modsue ] g Buuaauibug jo pesy SUILD "M PIAE( Aq yo paubis

6L'ZL9L 1abeuepy Buussuibug ueseH ‘| uesey Aqg pajajdwio)

aeq uonisod sweN

UOISN[2UOD SIY} 1O} SUOSEDY

paunbai s) (ebe)s puooss) Juswissasse Joedu Ny v

"Ajuniuwos [es0] sy Joj Jysuaq e apiaold [|im sjesodoid auy se pasinbal jou si Jusuissasse Joedw Ny Y

UOISN[OUOD SIY} 10} SUCSESY

paunbai jou si (obejs puodes) Juswissasse Joedwl jjn}

:(ajeldosdde se yon) Juswssasse anogqe U0 paseq - Uolele|2a( 2

Tudalen149




Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Eitem yr Agenda8

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

~ Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Streetscene & Engineering Cabinet Board
17t January 2020

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport
David W. Griffiths

Matter for Decision
Wards Affected: All

Proposed Traffic Orders:
Various Streets Neath Port Talbot - Schools

Purpose of the Report:

To consider the objections received following the advertisement of the above
scheme.

Executive Summary:

One letter was received objecting to the proposals.

The report outlines the objection and the recommendations for the scheme.
Background:

The proposed Traffic Orders Various Streets, Neath Port Talbot (Appendix A)
consolidates and legalises the Traffic Regulation Orders outside all the Schools
in the County Borough bringing the Orders into line with the current Traffic

Signs Regulations and General Directions 2016 diagram no. 1027.1 (School
Keep Clear).

Tudalen151



Financial Impacts:

The work will be funded from the Capital Works Programme.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.

The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix B has indicated that a more
in-depth assessment is not required. A summary is included below:-

A full impact assessment is not required as the proposals will provide a benefit
for the local community.

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No implications.

Workforce Impacts:

No implications.

Legal Impacts:

The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period as part of the statutory
process.

Risk Management Impacts:

No implications.

Consultation:

A consultation exercise was undertaken in October 2019.

One letter was received objecting to the proposals.

Tudalen152



The objection is summarised below:-

The timing and days of the order are excessive to meet the problem referred
to in the statement of reasons. The statement of reasons is that the scheme
IS necessary to prevent indiscriminate parking outside schools in the
interest of road safety. The orders are for No stopping Monday to Friday
8.00 am — 5.00pm on entrance markings. This order covers the school day
including breakfast, nursery and after school clubs.

No pupils will enter or leave the school outside the morning or afternoon
times because the school gates are locked. However most schools now
provide breakfast, nursery and after school clubs between 8.00 am and
5.00pm.

The proposal will extend to every weekday throughout the year and
therefore the extent of the order is excessive.

The traffic order only applies to the School Keep Clear markings which have
been adjusted to bring them into line with the current Traffic Signs
Regulations and General Directions 2016 Diagram No. 1027.1.

These restrictions generally do not exceed 45.0 metres and therefore will
not significantly impact the availability of the on street parking.

There is currently unrestricted parking to both the front and side of the
objector’s property and a residents parking scheme in operation in the street
for which the objector is entitled to apply for a permit.

The local Members have been consulted with regard to the objection and they
support the proposals as originally advertised.

Recommendations:

That the objection be overruled and the proposed Traffic Orders Various
Streets, Neath Port Talbot (as detailed in the circulated report) be implemented
Countywide on site and the objector to be informed accordingly.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking outside schools in the interest of highway
safety.

Tudalen153



Implementation of Decision:

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period.
Appendices:

Appendix A — Various Streets Neath Port Talbot — Schools — Order 2019
Appendix B — First Stage |IA

List of Background Papers:

None.

Officer Contact:

Martin Brumby, Project Manager Highways - Engineering & Transport

Tel. No: 01639 686013
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen154


mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk

Appendix A

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT

(VARIOUS STREETS NEATH PORT TALBOT — SCHOOLS)
(REVOCATION) (NO STOPPING ON SCHOOL ENTRANCE MARKINGS, MONDAY TO
FRIDAY 8AM TO 5PM) AND
(PROHIBITION OF WAITING, LOADING OR UNLOADING AT ANY TIME)

ORDER 2019

NOTICE is given that the Council intends to make an Order under Sections 1 and 2 of the
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act of 1984”) and of all
other powers them enabling and after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in
accordance with Part Il of Schedule 9 of the Act of 1984, the effect of which is as set out
in the Schedules below.

A copy of the draft Order, Statement of Reasons and plan may be inspected during office
hours at the main reception desks in the Neath and Port Talbot Civic Centres and at the
Pontardawe Library. Any objections should be submitted in writing, setting out the reasons
thereof, to reach the Head of Engineering and Transport, The Quays, Baglan Energy Park,
Neath SA11 2GG by 30" October 2019.

If you have any enquiries regarding this notice please contact the Engineering Section on
01639 686479.

SCHEDULES

Schedule 1 — No Stopping, Monday to Friday, 8am — 5pm On Entrance Markings

Alderman Davies School
St. David’s Street, Neath (North Side)

1.1 From a point approximately 56 metres south east of its junction with Orchard Street
for a distance of approximately 36 metres in a south easterly direction.

Alltwen Primary School
Alltwen Hill, Alltwen (East Side)

1.2 From a point approximately 44 metres north of its junction with Bryn Golau for a
distance of approximately 46 metres in a north easterly direction.

Tudalen155



Baglan Primary School
Eimwood Road, Baglan (North Side)

1.3  From a point approximately 46 metres south west of its junction with Fairwood Drive
for a distance of approximately 28 metres in a south westerly direction

Lodge Drive, Baglan (South Side)

1.4  From a point approximately 75 metres south west of its junction Fairwood Drive for
a distance of approximately 24 metres in a south westerly direction.

Blaendulais Primary School
Access to Blaendulais School (South West Side)

1.5 From its junction with Station Road for a distance of approximately 53 metres in a
south easterly direction.

1.6  From a point approximately 75 metres south east of its junction with Station Road
for a distance of approximately 26 metres in a south easterly direction.

Blaengwrach Primary School
Heol Wenallt, Blaengwrach (North West Side)

1.7  From a point approximately 116 metres east of its junction with Fothergill Road for a
distance of approximately 28 metres in a north easterly direction.

School Road, Blaengwrach (North East Side)

1.8 From a point approximately 87 metres south east of its junction with Edwards Street
for a distance of approximately 25 metres in a south east then westerly direction.

Bryncoch Primary School
Furzeland Drive, Bryncoch (West Side)

1.9 From a point opposite the northern kerbline of Birchwood Close for a distance of
approximately 36 metres in a southerly direction and approximately 7 metres in a
northerly direction.

Central Infants School
Theodore Road, Port Talbot (South East Side)

1.10 From a point approximately 100 metres south west of its junction with Park View for a
distance of approximately 31 metres in a south westerly direction.

Tudalen156



Central Junior School
Broad Street, Port Talbot (North West Side)

1.11 From a point approximately 44 metres south west of its junction with York Street for a
distance of approximately 31 metres in a south westerly direction.

Coed Hirwaun Primary School, Margam
Cwrt Y Carw, Margam (West Side)

1.12 From its junction with Cwm Cadno for a distance of approximately 36 metres in a
northerly direction.

Coedffranc Junior School, Skewen
Old Road, Skewen (North Side)

1.13 From a point approximately 62 metres west of its junction with High Street for a
distance of approximately 23 metres in westerly direction.

Stanley Road, Skewen (East Side)

1.14 From a point approximately 108 metres north of its junction with Wern Road for a
distance of approximately 27 metres in a northerly direction.

Creunant Primary School, Crynant
School Road, Crynant (South West Side)

1.15 From a point approximately 98 metres south east of its junction with Main Road for a
distance of approximately 26 metres in a south easterly direction.

1.16 From a point approximately 140 metres south east of its junction with Main Road for
a distance of approximately 30 metres in a southerly direction.

Crymlyn Primary School, Jersey Marine
School Road, Jersey Marine (North East Side)

1.17 From a point approximately 23 metres south east of its junction with Hill View for a
distance of approximately 25 metres in a south easterly direction.

Crynallt Primary School, Cimla
Afan Valley Road, Cimla (North Side)

1.18 From a point approximately 64 metres east of its junction with Trevallen Avenue for a
distance of approximately 32 metres in an easterly direction.

Castle Drive, Cimla (South East Side)

1.19 From a point approximately 150 metres west of its junction with Glannant Way for a
distance of approximately 45 metres in a south westerly direction.

Tudalen157



Cwmnedd Primary School, Glynneath
New Street, Glynneath (North West Side)

1.20 From a point approximately 21 metres north east of its junction with Lancaster Close
for a distance of approximately 26 metres in a north easterly direction.

1.21 From a point approximately 75 metres north east of its junction with Lancaster Close
for a distance of approximately 26 metres in a north easterly direction.

New Street, Glynneath (South East Side)

1.22 From a point approximately 53 metres north east of its junction with Lancaster Close
for a distance of approximately 26 metres in a north easterly direction.

Cwmtawe Comprehensive School
Ffordd Parc Ynysderw (South Side)

1.23 From its junction with the School Access Road for a distance of approximately 35
metres in an easterly direction.

Ffordd Parc Tawe (West Side)

1.24 From its junction with the School Access Road for a distance of approximately 30
metres in a northerly direction.

Cymmer Afan Primary School
Margam Street, Cymmer (North Side)

1.25 From a point approximately 60 metres north west of its junction with Brytwn Road for
a distance of approximately 30metres in a north easterly direction.

Dyffryn Lower Comprehensive School
Talcennau Road, Port Talbot (North West Side)

1.26 From a point approximately 33 metres north east of its junction with Devonshire
Place for a distance of approximately 46 metres in a north easterly direction.

Eastern Primary School
Incline Row, Taibach (North West Side)

1.27 From a point approximately 108 metres north east of its junction with Commercial
Road for a distance of approximately 46 metres in a north easterly direction.

Tudalen158



Glyncorrwg Primary School
Dunraven Street, Glyncorrwg (North Side)

1.28 From a point approximately 25 metres west of its junction with Cymmer Road for a
distance of approximately 23 metres in a westerly direction.

Bridge Street, Glyncorrwg (South Side)

1.29 From a point approximately 11 metres north west of its junction with Cymmer Road
for a distance of approximately 25 metres in a north westerly direction.

1.30 From a point approximately 55 metres north west of its junction with Cymmer Road
for a distance of approximately 26 metres in a north westerly direction.

Gnoll Primary School
Cimla Road, Neath (South West Side)

1.31 From a point approximately 50 metres north west of its junction with Westernmoor
Road for a distance of approximately 28 metres in a north westerly direction.

Westernmoor Road, Neath (West Side)

1.32 From a point approximately 82 metres south of its junction with Cimla Road for a
distance of approximately 25 metres in a southerly direction.

Bilton Road, Neath (North Side)

1.33 From a point approximately 54 metres east of its junction with Rugby Avenue for a
distance of approximately 44 metres in an easterly direction.

Godre’r Graig Primary School
Graig Road, Godre’r Graig (North West Side)

1.34 From a point approximately 42 metres north east of its junction with Gnoll Road for a
distance of approximately 44 metres in a north easterly direction.

Llangatwg Community School
Main Road, Cadoxton (North Side)

1.35 From a point approximately 19 metres west of its junction with Penscynor for a
distance of approximately 32 metres in a westerly direction.

Llangiwg Primary Road, Ynysmeudwy
New Road, Ynysmeudwy (South East Side)

1.36 From a point approximately 68 metres south west of its junction with Leyshon Road
for a distance of approximately 33 metres in a south westerly direction.

Tudalen159



Maesmarchog Primary School, Dyffryn Cellwen
Main Road, Dyffryn Cellwen (South West Side)

1.37 From a point approximately 29 metres north west of its junction with School Road for
a distance of approximately 42 metres in a north westerly direction.

Melin Infants School, Neath
Morgan’s Road, Neath (South East Side)

1.38 From a point approximately 2 metres south west of its junction with Herbert Road for
a distance of approximately 27 metres in a south westerly direction.

Herbert Road, Neath (South West Side)

1.39 From a point approximately 2 metres south east of its junction with Morgan’s Road for
a distance of approximately 44 metres in a south easterly direction.

Melin Junior School, Neath
School Road, Neath (South West Side)

1.40 From a point approximately 8 metres south east of its junction with Briton Ferry Road
for a distance of approximately 38 metres in a south easterly direction.

Walter’s Road, Neath (North West Side)

1.41 From a point approximately 55 metres south west of its junction with School Road for
a distance of approximately 31 metres in a south easterly direction.

Sandfields Primary School, Aberavon
Lillian Street, Aberavon (North West Side)

1.42 From its junction with Pendarvis Street for a distance of approximately 29 metres in a
north easterly direction.

1.43 From a point approximately 54 metres north east of its junction with Pendarvis Street
for a distance of approximately 35 metres in a north easterly direction.

Sandfields Primary School Access, Aberavon (South East Side)

1.44 From its junction with Pendarvis Street for a distance of approximately 27 metres
north easterly direction.

St Joseph’s RC Primary School, Neath
Cook Rees Avenue, Neath (North West Side)

1.45 From a point approximately 117 metres north east of its junction with Hillside Lane for
a distance of approximately 27 metres in a north easterly direction.

Tudalen160



St Joseph’s RC Comprehensive School, Aberavon
Newton Avenue, Sandfields (North West Side)

1.46 From a point approximately 59 metres north east of its junction with Nobel Avenue for
a distance of approximately 23 metres in a north easterly direction.

St Therese RC Primary School, Sandfields
Southdown Road, Sandfields (South East Side)

1.47 From a point approximately 71 metres north east of its junction with Western Avenue
for a distance of approximately 42 metres in a north easterly direction.

Tairgwaith Primary School, Tairgwaith
Liwyncelyn Road, Tairgwaith (South West Side)

1.48 From a point approximately 39 metres south east of its junction with New Road for a
distance of approximately 32 metres in a southerly direction.

Tonna Primary School, Tonna
School Road, Tonna (South East Side)

1.49 From a point approximately 45 metres north east of its junction with Henfaes Road
Side Lane for a distance of approximately 32 metres in a north easterly direction.

School Road, Tonna (North Side)

1.50 From a point opposite its junction with Henfaes Road Side Lane for a distance of
approximately 36 metres in an easterly direction.

Cwmllynfell Welsh Primary School, Cwmllynfell
Bryn Road, Cwmllynfell (North West Side)

1.51 From a point approximately 71 metres south west of its junction with Gwilym Road for
a distance of approximately 22 metres in a south westerly direction.

Gwaun Cae Gurwen Welsh Primary School, Gwaun Cae Gurwen
New Road, Gwaun Cae Gurwen (North Side)

1.52 From a point approximately 164 metres east of its junction with Brynamman Road for
a distance of approximately 30 metres in an easterly direction.

1.53 From a point approximately 251 metres east of its junction with Brynamman Road for
a distance of approximately 23 metres in an easterly direction.

Tudalenl161



Rhosafan Welsh Primary School
Marine Drive, Sandfields (South West Side)

1.54 From a point approximately 88 metres north west of its junction with Marine Close for
a distance of approximately 40 metres in a north westerly direction.

1.55 From a point approximately 129 metres north west of its junction with Marine Close
for a distance of approximately 40 metres in a north westerly direction.

Trebanos Welsh Primary School, Trebanos
Swansea Road, Trebanos (North West Side)

1.54 From a point approximately 45 metres north east of its junction with Danygraig Road
for a distance of approximately 25 metres in a north easterly direction.

Tyle’r Ynn Welsh Primary School, Briton Ferry
Llansawel Crescent, Briton Ferry (North Side)

1.55 From a point approximately 232 metres east of its junction with Fairlawns for a
distance of approximately 25 metres in an easterly direction.

Ynysfach Primary School, Resolven
Lane Rear of 12 — 42 Neath Road, Resolven (South East Side)

1.56 From a point approximately 83 metres north east of its junction with Nant Y Gleisiad
for a distance of approximately 25 metres in a north easterly direction.

1.57 From a point approximately 130 metres north east of its junction with Nant Y Gleisiad
for a distance of approximately 26 metres in a north easterly direction.

Ysqgol Gymraeq Ystalyfera, Ystalyfera
Ynysydarren Road, Ystalyfera (South East Side)

1.58 From a point approximately 211 metres south west of its junction with St David’s
Road for a distance of approximately 40 metres in a south westerly direction.

Cwmafan Junior School
Ty’r Owen Row, Cwmavon (North East Side)

1.59 From a point approximately 18 metres north west of its junction with Depot Road for a
distance of approximately 37 metres in a north westerly direction.

Schedule 2 — Proposed No Waiting, No Loading or Unloading, At Any Time Order

Church Road, Baglan (Both Sides)

2.1 From its junction with EImwood Road for a distance of approximately 25 metres in a
south westerly direction

Tudalenl162



Elmwood Road, Baglan (North West Side)

2.2 From its junction with Church Road for a distance of approximately 10 metres in a
north easterly direction

2.3 From its junction with Church Road for a distance of approximately 7 metres in a
south westerly direction

Maes ty Canol, Baglan (North Side)

2.4 From a point approximately 118 metres east of its junction with Ascot Drive for a
distance of approximately 57 metres in an easterly direction.

Heol Wenallt, Blaengwrach (North West Side)

2.5 From a point approximately 92 metres east of its junction with Fothergill Road for a
distance of approximately 23 metres in a north easterly direction.

Main Road, Bryncoch (North East Side)

2.6 From a point opposite the southern kerbline of Ty’n Yr Heol Road for a distance of
approximately 70 metres in a north westerly direction and approximately 15 metres in
a south easterly direction.

Main Road, Cadoxton (South Side)

2.7 From a point approximately 62 metres north east of its junction with Stanley Place for
a distance of approximately 105 metres in a north easterly direction.

York Street, Port Talbot (South West Side)

2.8 From its junction with Broad Street for a distance of approximately 10 metres in a
north westerly direction.

Broad Street, Port Talbot (North West Side)

2.9 From its junction with York Street for a distance of approximately 10 metres in a
south westerly direction.

Penscynor, Cilfrew (East Side)

2.10 From a point approximately 93 metres south of its junction with The Pines for a
distance of approximately 35 metres in a southerly direction.

Tudalen163



Cwrt Y Carw, Margam (West Side)

2.11 From a point approximately 39 metres north of its junction with Cwm Cadno for a
distance of approximately 44 metres in a northerly direction.

Stanley Road, Skewen (East Side)

2.12 From a point approximately 48 metres north of its junction with Wern Road for a
distance of approximately 62 metres in a northerly direction.

School Road, Crynant (South West Side)

2.13 From a point approximately 124 metres south east of its junction with Main Road for a
distance of approximately 15 metres in a south easterly direction.

Bryn Siriol, Cymmer (North West Side)

2.14 From its junction with Bryn Siriol Lane for a distance of approximately 10 metres in a
south westerly direction.

2.15 From its junction with Bryn Siriol Lane for a distance of approximately 10 metres in a
north easterly direction.

Bryn Siriol Lane, Cymmer (Both Sides)

2.16 From its junction with Bryn Siriol for a distance of approximately 10 metres in a north
westerly direction.

Castle Drive, Cimla (South East Side)

2.17 From a point approximately 141 metres west of its junction with Glannant Way for a
distance of approximately 9 metres in a south westerly direction.

New Street, Glynneath (North West Side)

2.18 From a point approximately 10 metres north east of its junction with Lancaster Close
for a distance of approximately 10 metres in a north easterly direction.

2.19 From a point approximately 47 metres north east of its junction with Lancaster Close
for a distance of approximately 28 metres in a north easterly direction.

New Street, Glynneath (South East Side)

2.20 From a point approximately 42 metres north east of its junction with Lancaster Close
for a distance of approximately 10 metres in a north easterly direction.

Tudalen164



Penscynor, Cilfrew (North Side)

2.21 From a point approximately 55 metres north west of its junction with Main Road for a
distance of approximately 64 metres in a easterly direction.

Newton Avenue, Aberavon (North West Side)

2.22 From a point approximately 82 metres north east of its junction with Nobel Avenue for
a distance of approximately 54 metres in a north easterly direction.

Lane Rear of 12-42 Neath Road, Resolven (South East Side)

2.23 From a point approximately 108 metres north east of its junction with Nant Y Gleisiad
for a distance of approximately 22 metres in a north easterly direction.

School Road, Tonna (North East Side)

2.24 From appoint approximately 45 metres south east of its junction with Henfaes Road
for a distance of approximately 37 metres in a south easterly then south westerly
direction.

DATED 9% OCTOBER 2019
M C GRIFFITHS
HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES

Tudalen165



Appendix B

UOIEJUBLIO |BNX3S

Xag

Jenaguoibiiey

aoey

Auwisiep/foueubalg

diysiauped an/ebeluep

Juswubissesy Jopusn

Aiigesia

SN IS SIS SIS S

aby

&yoeduwi 31 ybiw
MoH/(asuapiae Buipn|oul) uoisioep Inok Joj suosesy

YwH
yoedw)

mouy] | ajqibyban

l.uoq

feuoN

ON

saA

11194} Jo asnesaq ajdoad uo joedw aaneniul ay) saoq °¢

Aluo ssao01d aaelsSIUILIPE [BUISIU|

Ajunwiwon Jspipp

Hels

slasn adlABeg

ON

SOA

‘}2ayje SAljBRIUI 8y} S80( T

juswuoliAUg :8)el0}dalI]

SpIEp IV iBalY 921AI3S

1091V.1 L¥Od HLV3N "S133¥1S SNOIYVA - S¥3AQNO0 J144viL A3S0d0dd Aiewuwins pue uondosap aAgeqiu]

aAenIUl 3L JO S|Ie}aQ )

Tudalen166



"0}@ ‘uoneIns|e

pooyj ‘Ajjenb Jie se yons
‘JUSWIUOIIAUS JapIM 3Y}
A Jo uonoajoud Buipoddns
9’| ‘swalshAsooe
10 sousljisal
ay} sjowoid o]

Ausionpolq soueyue

. pue urejuiew oj
éyoedwi 31 ybiw moH | W/H | mowy | ajqiBiBan
| (2ouspias Buipnjaul) uoisid2ap Anok 10j suoseady | Joedw) | juoqg JOUON | ON | S9A
:f1s19A1poiq uo Joedw aAgeniul ay} saoq °g
ysiBug ueyy Aiqeinoaey
sso| ou sbenbug|
A usiap ey} Buieas )
abenbue|
Ys|apn 2y3 @sn o)
A saniunpoddo s ajdoad
&yoedui 31 Jybiw Moy | /WH | mouy | IaBIIBaN
/ (pasn asuapiae Buipn|oul) uoisidap JNoA 10j suoseay | Joedw) | 3,uoq JouopN | oN | s9p

:uo Joedw) sAgeniul 8y} seo( ‘¢

Tudalenl167



9s10M

‘Ayayes Aemybiy Buiab 1o Bulinaoo swajqoud jusnaid

10 )sa18)ul 8y} ul Bunpyed ajeuiwosipul juaaaid |Im sweyds pasodoid ay | A [lIM BAREIIUI BY} MOY - UCIJUBARId

suonn|os 9|qeulelsns paleys puy

“SAJeIIUI SIUY UC Jayjabo) paxiom aney 0} suonesiuebio/saolnas JaYlo yIm

uonoas |eba) ay) pue siaquisw |eao| ayy yym Buoje suopoas sAemybiH syl 4 | poiom sney am moy - uoeloge|jon

aAlenul

‘anljeniul siyy uo Jayyabo) payiom aney ay) Buidojansp ui panjoaul usaq

uoljoes |ebs| sy} pue siequisw [esoj sy} yum Buoje suonoas shemybiH ay | s aney sjdoad moy - JUIWIA|OAU]

sanoalqo

‘Kiajes Aemybiy Buiagpiam 1no uodn spoedu

Jo 1sassul ay) ul Bunped ajeuiwosipul Juaaaid |im awayos pasodoid sy | P aAneul oy} moy - uoiyedbajul

a|doad

‘Kiajes AemybBiy jo Buiag-|lam wis) Buoj ay) spoddns

Jo Jsaisyul 8y} ul Bupjied syeuluuosipul Jusaaid [im awsyds pasodoid sy | A anijeniul sy} moy - waay buo
sjie3eq ON | S9A

(Bunjiom jo shem g) ajdisunid Juswdojaaap ajgeulesns ay) aseiquia aAeliul ay) seoq ‘9

Tudalen168



61Ch6lL lodsuel| g Buussuibuz jo pesH SUIYLD "M pireQ Aq yo paubis

6L°2ZL9L Jabeuepy Buussuibug ueseH ‘| ueseH Aq pejejdwon

2eg uopisod aweN

UOISN[OUOD SIY} 10} SUOSESY

pauinbai si (abejs puooss) Juswissasse joeduwl Ny

“Ayunuwion [eso) sy} 104 auaq e spiacid (m sjesodoid ay se palinbai jou i Juawssasse 10edwi [Ny v

UOISN[OUsY S|y} JOj SUOSESY

painbal you si (ebeys puosss) Juswssasse edw |Iny

:(sjeudoadde se yoi) Juswissasse anoge uo paseq - uoneseRaq *L

Tudalen169



Tudalen170



1/.TusfepnyL

STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET COMMITTEE

2019/2020 FORWARD WORK PLAN
STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET COMMITTEE

Rotation Contact
Type (Topical, | Officer/Head of
(Decision, Annual, Service
DAl RN VLT Monitoring or | Biannual,
Information) | Quarterly,
Monthly)
28 Traffic Orders Decision Topical | Dave Giriffiths
February |List of Approved Contractors Decision Topical | Dave Griffiths
2020
Rotation Contact
Type (Topical, | Officer/Head of
DATE Adenda ltems (Decision, Annual, Service
9 Monitoring or | Biannual,
Information) | Quarterly,
Monthly)
Traffic Orders Decision Topical | Dave Griffiths
24 April List of Approved Contractors (Select List Review) Decision Topical | Dave Griffiths/
2020 Hasan Hasan
Parking - Virtual Permits Decision Topical | Dave Griffiths /
Digital Modernisation of Service Steve Cook

07.01.20 — Version #7

Officer: Nicola Headon

gepuaby JA wayg



¢/lTuslepn|

STREETSCENE AND ENGINEERING CABINET COMMITTEE

Rotation Contact
Type (Topical, | Officer/Head of
DATE Agenda ltems (Dc_ems_lon, /-}nnual, Service
Monitoring or | Biannual,
Information) | Quarterly,
Monthly)
Traffic Orders Decision Topical | Dave Griffiths
52‘:;;(')9 List of Approved Contractors Decision Topical Dave Giriffiths

To be programmed in:

Traffic Order (as Needed)

List of Approved Contractors (as needed)

Budget only meetings

Quarterly Performance Monitoring

Road Safety Grant Schemes — (Decision/Annual) Dave Griffiths/ Martin Brumby
3 Year Review of Grit Bin Provision in NPT (due Aug/Sept 2021)

Headstone / Memorial Safety Programme — TBC (Information)

EMREC - TBC

Road Safety Strategy 2020-2025 — Joy Smith (TBC)

07.01.20 — Version #7 Officer: Nicola Headon




	Agenda
	3 Cynllun Rheoli Asesau Priffyrdd
	MR HAMP Plan 2019-22
	MR First Stage Assessment

	4 Rhestr o Gontractwyr Cymeradwy
	5 Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion Traffig: Cimla
	6 Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion Traffig: Amrywiol - Cwmgwrach
	7 Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion Traffig: Heol y Felin a'r Stryd Fawr, Cwmgwrach
	8 Gorchymyn/Gorchmynion Traffig: Strydoedd Amrywiol Castell-nedd Port Talbot - Ysgolion
	9 Blaenraglen Waith

